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From the Forest to 
the Sea: Emily Carr 
in British Columbia
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Dulwich has a unique ability to use its Old Master 
collection to make bold artistic moves, stimulate debate and 
broaden horizons. In the midst of the enormous popularity 
of contemporary art Dulwich has continued to demonstrate 
the value of its outstanding Permanent Collection, taking 
inspiration from contemporary approaches to art and 
approaching the collection in unconventional and original 
ways to surprise, question and educate. Made in China, An 
Impossible Bouquet and My London this year have proved 
that Dulwich’s collection remains relevant and inspiring.

Behind the scenes the year has been one of transition 
as we developed a new three-year strategy and began its 
implementation. We are proud of our ambitious aim to 
establish the Gallery as the perfect place to experience 
art, and to expand our artistic programme to increase the 
number and range of our visitors, building on the great 
successes of the past few years but forging new directions 
as well. Increasing income and improving organisational 
efficiency are both critical for this, but neither come 
without careful analysis and thorough preparation.  
Dulwich remains almost alone in the UK in being a  
collection designated as of national importance yet not 
receiving any regular revenue funding from any part 
of government. As a result of lower returns, income 
from our endowment now only covers around half of 
our underlying core costs, so we have to raise funds 
to cover these as well as to pay for the vital exhibition 
and education programmes which are so critical to 
engaging the public and fulfilling our charitable purpose. 

No one has embodied Dulwich’s passionate belief that 
art can be for everyone more over the past thirty years 
than Gillian Wolfe CBE. Under her leadership the Gallery’s 
educational team has breathed life into our permanent 
collection, helping a wide range of audiences develop new 
skills, enjoy art and change lives. From haute couture 
costumes inspired by the Old Masters and created by 
young people, to the translation of the images and stories 

found in the works into song by dementia sufferers and 
their carers, Dulwich has been a beacon for others to 
follow. We are hugely grateful for what she has achieved, 
and very sad to see her go, but we also celebrate the energy 
and innovation she has brought to the Gallery over the last 
three decades, a legacy that will continue to inspire the 
Gallery’s valuable work in public engagement for the future.

And of course it has been my great pleasure to open 
two outstanding exhibitions Art and Life: Ben Nicholson, 
Winifred Nicholson, Christopher Wood, Alfred Wallis, William 
Staite Murray and Emily Carr: From the Forest to the Sea.   
Carr, a new name and a revelation for many, attracted 
critical comparison to Van Gogh and Frida Kahlo. It was 
my pleasure to host members of the Haida Nation during 
the opening, in particular, Jim Hart, master carver and a 
Haida hereditary Chief whose advice and expertise had 
been invaluable in the choice of the First Nations artefacts 
included in the display, and to welcome HRH The Prince of 
Wales to see the exhibition and a demonstration of work 
done by students of the Prince’s School of Traditional Arts.

We could not continue to do the work we believe in 
without the support we receive from our audiences, 
funders and trustees. I would like to thank all those 
who follow and support us; large or small, whether in 
the UK or from abroad, every donation helps, and we are 
very grateful. My thanks also go to my fellow Trustees, 
and to Ian Dejardin and his team at the Gallery who 
plan, generate and realise our world-class programme.

simon Freakley,  
Chair of Trustees looks back 
on this year’s highlights and 
gives thanks to our supporters

chairman’s welcome
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in setting the terms oF his great bequest in 1811, Sir 
Francis Bourgeois asked that the collection he and Noel 
Desenfans had assembled should be made available ‘for the 
inspection of the publick’. His conviction led to the creation 
of the first building designed expressly for the display of 
paintings to the public, and we remain as committed as 
ever to ensuring that the collection is interpreted and made 
available to as many people as possible. Old Masters no 
longer appeal in the way they did two hundred years ago, 
so we have to work that bit harder to encourage people to 
look at them seriously. Made in China: A Doug Fishbone Project 
inspired visitors to take a closer look at the collection as 
they sought to identify the replica painting hanging among 
the originals. The results were evident just watching the 
way people moved around the Gallery – eyes scrutinising 
the brushwork – searching for signs of ‘authenticity’, 
asking themselves what was – and what was not - the 
mark of a true master at work. Word of our collection 
reached China, Latin America and Russia amongst others 
with broadcasters across the globe flocking to cover this 
experiment in what it means to be ‘original’. Visitors to 
the Collection doubled while the work was on display.  

Earlier we had staged An Impossible Bouquet, a display 

Our thanks
Dulwich Picture Gallery receives no regular revenue  
funding from any part of government. With more than  
half of our income to raise each year, we could not continue 
the work we do without the help of our supporters. 

of paintings by Jan van Huysum, showing our own 
Vase with Flowers with two other works from a private 
collection. The display encouraged a different kind of 
attention to these astounding masterpieces, ‘impossible’ 
in their composition as the flowers they depict do not 
bloom at the same time. Identifying the individual 
blooms was a work of both scholarship by our curatorial 
team, and in conjunction our enterprising Head of Retail, 
Sonia Kiourtzidis, commissioned a fragrance unique 
to the Gallery’s shop inspired by the many flowers. 

From the Forest to the Sea: Emily Carr in British Columbia, 
a true one-off, was a source of great personal curatorial 
pleasure. The exhibition, the culmination of several years of 
collaboration with Sarah Milroy, my Canadian co-curator, 
and input from Jim Hart, a hereditary Chief of the Haida 
Nation who is also one of Canada’s greatest master carvers, 
was one of true importance, as reaction from our visitors and 
the media alike confirmed.  Much like the Group of Seven 
exhibition in 2011, her works took us on a journey across 
the Canadian landscape - such a rich source of beauty, 
inspiration and a hugely important indigenous narrative. 
The exhibition, now on show at the Art Gallery of Ontario, 
is continuing to enlighten audiences in her native country. 

Earlier in the year another woman artist came to critical 
attention with Winifred Nicholson impressing audiences 
in Art and Life, a fascinating investigation into the process 
of mutual inspiration and creativity experienced by Ben 
and Winifred Nicholson, further influenced by the artists 
they encountered during their ten year marriage. We were 
privileged to work with Jovan Nicholson, grandson to Ben 
and Winifred, who bought a unique personal knowledge 
and familiarity with their life and work that produced an 
excellent and fascinating narrative thread through the show.

Gillian Wolfe CBE sadly left the Gallery this year after 
30 years of dedication and inspiring leadership. My London, 
an exhibition of portrait photography by young people was 
a fitting and gratifying testament to the Gallery’s ability to 
inspire through art. Working with renowned photographer 
Sal Idriss the group were trained in the art of photography, 
from composition to technical skills, and produced some 
outstanding work featuring family members, friends and 
Southwark figureheads to tell the story of London from 
their perspective. Gillian has spearheaded an astonishing 
and sector-leading educational programme here and 
we look forward to continuing to develop life-changing 
programmes and unique experiences for our audiences.

Finally, this year saw us celebrate the 60th anniversary 
of the Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery, set up to support 
Gallery when it was still part of Dulwich College. Their 
passion and support over the years has been remarkable, 
and has shown just how much the Gallery means to 
people who come across our work. Nothing we do could 
be done without the support, financial and otherwise, of 
those many individuals, as well as trusts, foundations and 
corporate sponsors. I am immensely grateful to them all, 
and to the Trustees and staff who work so hard to make sure 
we continue to enable the public to experience great art.

ian ac Dejardin, The 
Sackler Director, reflects on 
a year that has attracted 
interest across the globe

DirecTor’s inTroDucTion
The 29th May 1961 Charity / The Geoffrey and Julian Agnew Charitable Trust / Aimia 
/ Alleyn’s School / The American Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery / The Art Fund / 
Arts Council England / Michael Audain and Yoshiko Karasawa / Richard Aylmer / Nick 
 and Debbie Barton / The Estate of the late Mrs Stella Benwell  / The Canadian Friends 
of Dulwich Picture Gallery / The Estate of the late Mrs Deborah Cullen / D’Oyly Carte 
Charitable Trust / Rupert Duchesne and Holly Coll Black / Dulwich College / Martha 
Durdin and Tony Caldwell / Desenfans Circle Gold members / Desenfans Circle Silver 
members / Desenfans Circle Bronze members / 1811 Club / Gillian Eeley / The Elizabeth 
Cayzer Charitable Trust / Mark and Sarah Evans / Simon and Meg Freakley / Timothy 
Franey Charitable Foundation / Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery / Bunt and Susan 
Ghosh / The Golden Bottle Charitable Trust / Goldsmiths’ Company Charities / The 
Estate of the late Mr Jeremy Gotch / Ron and Gillian Graham / Carol Gray / Rod and Lois 
Green / David and Patsy Heffel / Heritage Lottery Fund / Johnny and Sarah Van Haeften 
/ The Estate of the late Miss Grace Patricia Hills / Jamie C Irving / Rosamond Ivey / Joan 
F Ivory / James Allen’s Girls’ School / Gregory Kane and Adrian Burns / Michael and 
Sonja Koerner / Mrs Sarah Kowitz / Linbury Trust / The M&G Group / Dr Kevin and 
Jackie Mountain / Arthur and Holly Magill Foundation / Masterpiece International / 
James Mayor / Ann McCaig / McLean Foundation / The Mercers’ Company / Michael 
O’Mara Books Limited / National Association of Decorative and Fine Arts Societies 
/ The Hamish Parker Charitable Trust / Ian and Anne Park / Christopher Philps / 
Philip Wilson Publishers / David Pike / Power Corporation of Canada / A K Prakash 
Foundation / RBC Wealth Management / Richard Rogers Charitable Settlement / Robert 
Ronus / Dame Theresa Sackler DBE / Fred and Beverly Schaeffer / JR Shaw / John 
Sharman / Gerald Sheff and Shanitha Kachan / Dasha Shenkman OBE / David Silcox 
and Linda Intaschi / Daniel F Sullivan / The Bernard Sunley Charitable Foundation 
/ Travellers Club / Penny Treadwell / Mary Weston CBE / George and Patti White / 
Wingate Foundation / The Estate of the late Mr George Young / Paul Zed and Wende 
Cartwright / The Zolfo Cooper Foundation / And those who wish to remain anonymous.
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Made in China: a doug Fishbone projeCt 
Working with conceptual artist Doug Fishbone, we 
commissioned a Chinese replica of one of our paintings 
and hung it in the Gallery in place of the original. The 
visitor response and media interest was unprecedented. 
Over 3,000 votes were cast on iPads placed in the Gallery. 
12% of visitors correctly identified the replica. Visits to the 
Permanent Collection doubled during the three month 
challenge and this trend continued into the period of The 
Reveal when we  displayed the original and its replica side 
by side. Other works in the Collection which have been 
subject to questions of attribution or were commissioned as 
workshop copies were also highlighted, to provide context.

an iMpossible bouquet: 
Four MasterpieCes by jan Van huysuM
Jan van Huysum (1682-1749) was the most revered Dutch 
still-life painter of the 18th century, a master of both 
accuracy and ingenuity. This display showcased four of 
his finest works – two of them from a private collection - 
illustrating the artist’s important role in the development 
of the flower still life. An accompanying handout explored 
the astounding botanical detail contained in the works. 

Old masters, 
new questions
Our Permanent Collection became a source of 
energetic public scrutiny and enjoyment this 
year with two interventions taking pioneering 
approaches to our works -  inviting new debate 
about the Old Masters and appealing to new 
audiences. 

“ Made in China is an 
undoubted success” 
the telegraph

Jan van Huysum Vase with 
Flowers c.1715 © Trustees 
of Dulwich Picture Gallery
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arT anD life: Ben nicholson, winifreD 
nicholson, chrisTopher wooD, alfreD 
wallis, william sTaiTe murray 
Ben and Winifred Nicholson were at the forefront of 
the Modern British movement and produced some of 
the most memorable works of the period. Art and Life 
was curated by their grandson, Jovan Nicholson, and 
focussed on ten years of artistic exploration by the 
couple providing a rare opportunity to see their views of 
the same landscapes, seascapes, still lifes and portraits 
alongside pieces by contemporaries Christopher Wood, 
Alfred Wallis and the potter William Staite Murray.

from The foresT To The sea: 
emily carr in BriTish columBia
Dulwich presented the first UK exhibition dedicated 
to Emily Carr - one of Canada’s most beloved and 
esteemed artists but virtually unknown outside her 
native country. The exhibition traced a dramatic 
journey from Carr’s brooding, often claustrophobic 
forest scenes to her later euphoric sky paintings, 
rhythmic light-filled beach scenes and clear-cut 
landscapes. Carr was compared in the media to the 
greats of art.

Prince Charles, Canadian High Commissioner 
Gordon Campbell and The Lord-Lieutenant of Greater 
London, Sir David Brewer, C.M.G., J.P paid a visit 
to the exhibition and met with students from The 
Prince’s School of Traditional Arts who presented their 
portfolios to HRH during a traditional art workshop 
where they also demonstrated techniques such as 
porcupine quilling. 

Different 
artists, 
different 
perspectives 

Jovan Nicholson introduces 
Art and Life to the media.

Dulwich is renowned for its distinctive 
programme of special exhibitions which aims 
to present new perspectives on familiar names, 
or introduce artists new to a British audience. 
This year Art and Life unearthed an intriguing 
narrative of artistic exchange and Emily Carr, 
our autumn show, proved a revelation for  
British audiences almost completely new to  
the astonishing life and work of one of Canada’s 
best-known names.

“ Canada’s Van Gogh”  
the obserVer

 
 the telegraph 

“ You’ll leave hungry  
for the next 
instalment”  
tiMe out

Emily Carr, Tree (spiralling 
upward), 1932 - 1933, oil 
on paper, 87.5 x 58.0 cm, 

Collection of the Vancouver 
Art Gallery, Emily Carr Trust, 
VAG 42.3.63, Photo: Trevor 
Mills, Vancouver Art Gallery
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a healThy DeBaTe symposia  
June 2014
The Gallery partnered with Anxiety Festival London 2014 
to host A Healthy Debate Symposia, three debates around 
art and mental health. The symposia included a ‘Alfred 
Wallis: Outsider?’, a talk  inspired by Art and Life in the 
Gallery’s exhibition spaces. Dr Jenny Powell, Senior Curator 
at Kettle’s Yard, joined as guest speaker. 

 
‘i’m noT ThaT inTo arT’  
June 2014
Part of a new series of Art History course aiming to take 
put the fun and relevance back into looking at Old Master 
paintings. The course included a trip to the National Gallery 
with art historian Marie-Anne Mancio. 

archiTecTure laTe: spoTliGhT on soane 
June 2014
A popular late night event offered a chance for visitors to 
discover the history of the Gallery building with tours and 
drawing outside in the grounds. Part of the London Festival 
of Architecture.

The Brit School showcase 
Wearable Art for the 

inVADe project

Spotlight on Soane 
June 2014

Gillian Wolfe CBE 
opens Full of Life

Full of Life:  
September 2014

Opening doors,
reaching people
In the course of the year more than 
139,000 people experienced something 
of what Dulwich Picture Gallery has to 
offer. Over 40,000 of them were people 
joining us through a wide range of 
programmes we run to expand artistic 
horizons and enable a deeper enjoyment 
of art through practical sessions, talks, 
tours and outreach events.

pop-up anD sinG alonG wiTh crysTal 
palace overGrounD fesTival 
June 2014
A ‘pop-up and sing along’ workshop at Crystal Palace 
Overground Festival worked with Good Times: Art for Older 
People participants to create an art inspired music piece, a 
spin-off of the Gallery’s Visual to Vocal programme: 

BriT school: invaDe
July 2014
Our sixth annual partnership with the Brit School saw Year 
10 students working with the theme of ‘Wearable Art’ The 
students curated an evening of fashion and paintings at the 
gallery for teachers, peers, friends and families.

chilDren’s liTeraTure fesTival
July 2014 
South London state primary schools joined the Gallery 
for author events, art studio workshops and storytelling 
to help support schools in raising literacy levels. Author 
Anthony Horowitz joined the event opening his talk by 
commenting on the perfect marriage between an art 
gallery and a book festival by exploring the creative link 
between written and visual literacy.

The BiG Draw  
nOvember 2014
The Big Draw, Dulwich joined the annual drawing festival 
inviting families on site to make a large totem covered in 
drawings and sketches to celebrate the Emily Carr exhibition. 

full of life: a puBlic insTallaTion – 
celeBraTinG creaTiviTy in laTer life  
aT Dulwich picTure Gallery 
September 2014
In the most ambitious Good Times project to date, 
architectural glass artist, Binita Walia, drew inspiration 
from the Art and Life exhibition to nurture the talents 
of older adult participants. The project incorporated the 
ideas and artwork of nearly 120 older people, members of 
nearby community groups and a management group of 13 
older adults. Together they created intricate artwork for the 
cloister windows. 

“Full of Life highlighted the need for far more activities for the 
elderly, especially artistic and creative ones. The friendliness 
and camaraderie that was encouraged by the group leaders 
made this project most enjoyable.” 
– Ottis Edwards, Full of Life participant
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eDmunD De waal anD chris Keenan 
DeCember 2015
Edmund De Waal, a local Dulwich resident, describes 
himself as “a potter who writes”. Chris Keenan was an actor 
who became Edmund’s first apprentice. The two artists 
joined Dulwich Picture Gallery for a look back over their 
careers and the pottery they have produced. This was one 
of a number of events specially organised by the Friends of 
Dulwich Picture Gallery to celebrate the 60th anniversary 
of their founding.

anGela hewiTT  
30 January 2015
An audience of over 200 experienced an unmissable evening 
with internationally renowned Canadian pianist Angela 
Hewitt playing in the centre of Sir John Soane’s magical 
enfilade, a perfect environment to experience Hewitt’s 
performance. Also part of the Friends 60th celebrations.

conTexTual lecTure series:  
hiGh minDs: The vicTorians anD  
The BirTh of moDern BriTain 
marCh 2015
Our Contextual Lecture Series aims to provide historical 
and social context for the Gallery’s work and its collection. 
In 2014/15 it focussed on the Victorians, including a lecture 
on the work of the architect George Gilbert Scott from 
Gavin Stamp.

exhiBiTion: my lonDon 
February– marCh 2015
An exhibition of works produced in partnership with 
Blackfriars Settlement ran in the Gallery’s Linbury Room. 
The display was the culmination of a year-long project 
which saw young people working intensively with portrait 
photographer Sal Idriss to take images of their family, 
friends, Gallery staff and visitors, as well as the wonderful 
characters they have encountered on their journeys around 
London. The Mayor of Southwark sat for a portrait as part 
of the project.

mini masTerpieces  
February 2015
February marked the tenth month of the Mini–Masterpieces 
programme at Dulwich Picture Gallery. The sessions, which 
have become increasing popular, have helped to close a 
gap in Museum Education allowing parents with young 
children, aged 6 to 18 months, an opportunity to engage 
with the Gallery’s collection in a new and exciting way.

Students 
working 
with artist 
Ben Senior

Mayor of Southwark 
Councillor Sunil Chopra

My London 
photoshoot

Mini Masterpieces

Edmund De Waal 
and Chris Keenan

Spotlight on Soane 
in the gardens
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a global presence
Our permanent collection and exhibitions are 
world-class attracting attention across the globe. 
Key works are frequently in demand for exhibitions 
overseas, exhibitions tour across the world and the 
international media regularly cover our work.

The Globe and Mail and 
CBC covered Emily Carr with 
several spotlights throughout 
the show ahead of its arrival 
in Toronto.

Canada

Channel One covered Made  
in China with a broadcast piece

Russia

Budapest: Rembrandt, A Young 
Man, possibly the Artist’s Son 
Titus loaned to ‘Rembrandt 
and the Dutch Golden Age 
at the Museum of Fine Arts,’ 
Budapest, from 28 October 
2014–18 February 2015

Hungary

Raphael, Saint Francis of Assisi 
and Saint Anthony of Padua 
both loaned to ‘Perugino: 
Raphael’s Master’ at the 
Musée Jacquemart-André, 
Paris.

Paris

William Hogarth, Portrait 
of a Man, and Thomas 
Gainsborough, A Couple in a 
Landscape loaned to ‘Hogarth, 
Reynolds, Turner: British 
Painting and the Rise of 
Modernity’ at the Fondazione 
Roma Arte-Musei, Rome

Rome

Jacob van Ruisdael, Landscape 
with Windmills near Haarlem, 
John Constable after Ruisdael, 
Landscape with Windmills near 
Haarlem and Nicholas Poussin, 
Landscape with a Roman Road, 
were all loaned to ‘Constable: The 
Making of a Master’ at the V&A

London

Globo TV broadcast a Made 
in China feature to their 
audiences in Brazil.

Brazil

ABC News covered Made in 
China with a broadcast piece 
also released online.

Claude-Joseph Vernet, Italian 
Landscape, loaned to ‘Richard 
Wilson and the Transformation  
of European Landscape Painting’ 
at the Yale Centre for British Art

United States

Piero di Cosimo, A Young Man 
loaned to the National Gallery 
of Art, Washington DC, for 
the exhibition ‘Painter-poet of 
Renaissance Florence’
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a special place

CLOCKWISE FROM TOP: 
Dinner in the enfilade, Erdem 
pre-fall 2015 shoot, a Gallery 
wedding, the Gallery at night.

Nikolai Astrup, Midsummer eve Bonfire, 
after c.1917, oil on canvas, 60 x 66 cm, 
Sparebankstiftelsen DnB/The Astrup 
Collection/KODE, Bergen Art Museum, 
Norway. Photo © Dag Fosse / KODE

Dulwich Picture gallery’s FounDers believed 
that art should be made available for the public to 
enjoy. Their bequest brought with it the world’s original 
picture gallery, expressly designed for showing great 
paintings in a welcome and approachable setting. 

In the course of 2014, we developed and set out a new 
strategy for the period through to 2018, with the vision that 
we will be celebrated by our visitors and peers as the perfect 
place to experience art. 2015/16 will see exhibitions by Eric 
Ravilious, the Dutch graphic artist MC Escher, and the 
Norwegian artist Nikolai Astrup, as well as a display of Sir 
Anthony van Dyck’s self-portrait on tour from the National 
Portrait Gallery but seen here in the context of our own rich 

Future plans

collection of the artist’s work, as well as a contemporary 
interpretation. We will engage a wider range of audiences 
by developing a broad and coherent programme to increase 
the numbers and range of our visitors, and we will ensure 
the work of our learning department continues to reach out 
and break new ground. 

Underpinning all this, we need to ensure our financial 
sustainability. With no regular revenue funding from any 
part of government, and with lower returns from our 
endowment, we have to raise money to cover our core 
costs as well as to sustain the exhibition and educational 
programming work that we do. We will work to increase 
our income, particularly unrestricted income through a 
renewed Patron programme and an increased focus on 
opportunities to generate commercial revenue. We will aim 
to invest in improved systems to ensure we operate more 
effectively.  We will look to complete our fundraising for the 
Catalyst Learning Endowment. 

And we will look towards 2017, which sees the 
bicentenary of Dulwich Picture Gallery opening its doors to 
the public, letting everyone experience what until then had 
been the privilege of the wealthy few. 

M.C. Escher, Drawing Hands, 1948, 
Lithograph, 28.2 x 33.2 cm, Collection 
Gemeentemuseum Den Haag, The 
Hague, The Netherlands.
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£1,407k
ColleCtion and 
gallery operations

incoming resources were £3.3m compared to £4.6m 
last year, but this was largely a result of the exceptional 
donations to the endowment of £1.7m in 2013/14. ; excluding 
these underlying income rose by almost 14%. This followed 
a decision to focus on fundraising for revenue rather than 
for the endowment after it became clear last year that 
endowment fundraising was having a negative impact on in-
year income and thereby exacerbating the operating deficit. 
Voluntary donations excluding those to the endowment 
rose by £193,000 to £1.1m, including a notable increase in 
income from the Friends, and from the Canadian Friends in 
support of the Emily Carr exhibition. Self-generated income 
also increased, mainly through sponsorship for Emily 
Carr, but also from improved performance from our shop, 
where sales rose 9% despite the lower visitor numbers. 

Expenditure in the year totalled £4.4 million, an increase 
on 2013/14. Spending on charitable activity rose, including 
on exhibitions because of the cost of international loans 
for Emily Carr. Much work has been done internally to 
understand our finances better and ensure that costs are 
recognised against the activity to which they relate. We 
have had to increase spending in some areas which have 
been neglected in the past; these include improvements 
to security, better resourcing for the finance team and 
a new accounting system. We made a number of changes 
in our structures, including a full restructure of our Front of 
House operation, which will deliver savings in years to come 
and enable us to improve the service we offer to the public. 
In August we had to implement auto-enrolment for pensions 
which also added to staffing costs. Overall, the Gallery 
reported a net deficit for the year, before unrealised gains or 
losses, of £1,030,000, of which £299,000 are costs related to 
revaluing the defined benefit pension liability, and £146,000 
the depreciation charge on the gallery extension built in 2000.

Financial review
invesTmenTs
Net unrealised gains in investments totalled £993,000, 
compared to £2000 in 2013/14. The improvement in 
performance came largely in the fourth quarter of the year, 
which saw an increase of over 6%. The Trustees’ policy is 
to balance the need for consistent and sustainable income 
with protecting the real long-term value of the endowment. 
Rathbone Investment Management Limited were appointed 
as fund managers on 8 February 2013, and in March 2014 
Trustees decided to move to a total return approach under 
which the target to Rathbones is to achieve total return (net 
of fees) of 3.5% above RPI inflation, allowing the Gallery to 
withdraw 3.5% of the value of the portfolio as either income 
or capital to contribute to its running costs each year. Total 
net incoming resources including investment gains were 
£680,000 (2013/14: £1.1 million) resulting in a rise in net 
assets to £25.5 million as at 31 March 2015.

DefineD BenefiT pension scheme
For some years the largest single liability on the Gallery’s 
balance sheet has been the deficit on the defined benefit 
pension scheme with the LPFA. Faced with a significant 
increase in funding requests from the LPFA Trustees took 
the difficult decision that it was no longer affordable for 
the Gallery given the potential future volatilty of the deficit 
because of its exposure to financial markets and the cost 
of the future benefits which would be accrued. We have 
agreed to repay the deficit to the LPFA over the next five 
years and have transferred funds from the Designated 
Funds and the Expendable Endowment to meet it. This 
means the availability of usable reserves is reduced and 
with it our capacity to continue to absorb deficits. 

reserves policy 
The Gallery holds endowment funds, restricted funds, 
and unrestricted funds, which include funds designated 
by Trustees for specific purposes and general funds, 
comprising the operating fund and the pension reserve. 
The operating fund is an unrestricted reserve maintained 
to enable the Gallery to carry on its charitable activities; 
its balance at 31 March 2015 was £582,000. Unrestricted 
reserves will continue to be supplemented by additional 
fundraising or operating surplus to reach a level equivalent 
to between six and twelve months’ core operating costs.

Radhika Radhakrishnan
Chair, Finance and Audit Committee
1 July 2015 

This has been a difficult year financially,  
as visitor numbers fell back to more normal 
levels from the highs of 2013/14 and the 
fundraising climate became increasingly 
competitive. Alongside developing a new 
strategic framework, the Gallery reviewed  
all its operations and realised that significant 
investment of both time and money are needed 
to equip the organisation to move forward 
effectively and improve its performance. 

£165k 
donations  
to endowment

£679k 
investments

£723k 
admissions

£664k 
shop, Café and 
CommerCial

£270k 
friends

£825k
donations

total 
inCoMe

£3,326,000

£384k
eduCation

£762k
exhibition  
programme

£301k
shop, Café & 
CommerCial Costs

£274k
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Financial statements balance sheets as at 31 march 2015

  unrestricted  Restricted  endowment 2015 2014 
  funds  funds  funds Total Funds Total Funds 
 notes     £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000 £’000 
 
inCoMing resourCes
Incoming resources from generated funds      

Voluntary income 2 580  515  165  1,260  2,675 
Activities for generating funds 3 664  -  -  664  463 
Investment income 4 577  102  -  679  575  

Incoming resources from  5 723  -  -  723  910 
charitable activities 
 
Total incoming resources  2,544  617  165  3,326  4,623  
       
resourCes expended
Cost of generating funds 

Costs of generating voluntary income 6 310  5  -  315  332   
Costs of goods sold and other costs 6 354  -  -  354  296 
Investment management costs 6 -  -  95  95  75

Charitable activities 7 2,351  830  -  3,181  2,610 
Governance costs 8 73  38  -  111  65 
Other resources expended 20 299  -  -  299  -  
 
Total resources expended  3,388  873  95  4,356  3,378  
       
net incoming/(outgoing)  
resources before transfers  (843) (256) 70 (1,030) 1,245  

Transfers 
Gross transfers between funds  439  (107) (332) -  -   

 
net incoming/(outgoing) resources for year       
before recognised gains/(losses)  (404) (363) (263) (1,030) 1,245  

other recognised gains/(losses)  
net Gains on investment assets  - - 1,709 1,709 2 
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes  -  - -  -  (180)

       
net movement in funds  (404) (363) 1,446 679 1,067 

Total funds brought forward at 1 April 2014  160  3,661  20,987  24,808  23,741 

Total funds carried forward as 31 march 2015  (244) 3,298  22,433  25,487  24,808 

 notes  2015  2015  2014  2014 
  Gallery  Group  Gallery  Group 
  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
 
fixed assets

Tangible assets - Land & buildings 14  2,866  2,866  3,013  3,013 
Tangible assets - other 15  39  39  45  45 
Investments 12  23,270 23,270 22,277  22,277  

Total fixed assets  26,175 26,175 25,335  25,335

Debtors due after more than 1 year 16 23  -  23  -

current assets
Stocks and work-in-progress  -  64  -  44 
Debtors 17  415  324  331  252 
Short term deposits  134  134  69  80 
Cash at bank and in hand  176  304  99  181 
Total current assets  725  826  499  557 

liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within 1 year 18 (783) (843) (529) (546)

net current assets / (liabilities)  (58) (17) (30) 11  

Total assets less current liabilities  26,140 26,158 25,328  25,346 

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than 1 year 19 (3) (3) (5) (5)
Long term liability inclusive of interest 19 (668) (668) -  - 

net assets excluding pension (liability)  25,469 25,487 25,323  25,341 

Defined benefit pension scheme (liability) 20 -  -  (533) (533)
net assets / (liabilities)  25,469 25,487 24,790  24,808 

The funds of the charity:      
endowment funds 22 22,433  22,433  20,987  20,987
Restricted capital funds 23 2,945  2,945  3,119  3,119 
Restricted income funds 24 353  353  542  542 
unrestricted income funds     

Designated funds 25 -  -  494  494 
Operating fund 25 564  582  181  199 
Pension reserve 25 (826) (826) (533) (533)

  (262) (244) 142  160 

Total funds  25,469  25,487  24,790  24,808 

Consolidated stateMent oF FinanCial aCtiVities For the year ended 31 MarCh 2015

radhika radhakrishnan 
Chairman of Finance and Audit Committee

simon freakley 
Chairman of Trustees

Approved by the Trustees on 1st July 2015 and signed on their behalf by

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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consoliDateD cash Flow statement 
For the year enDeD 31 march 2015

      2015  2014 
      £’000  £’000 
 
 net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities    a  (1,276) (945)
 Returns on investments and servicing of finance    b  679  561 
 Capital expenditure and financial investment    b  704  (3,834)
       
 cash inflow / (outflow) before increase in liquid resources and financing d  107  (4,218)

Management of liquid resources     b (54) 557
Financing     b 70   1,698  
        
increase/(decrease) in cash in the year      123  (1,963)

a) reconciliation of net (outgoing) resources to net cash (outflow) from operating activities   
 
net (outgoing)/incoming resources      (1,030) 1,245
Pension scheme curtailment      299  -
FRS17 pension fund adjustment      -  50 
Investment income receivable      (679) (575)
Depreciation      162  149 
(Increase)/decrease in stocks      (20) (6)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors      (71) (32)
 Increase/(decrease) in creditors due within 1 year     133  (78)
 net movements in expendable endowment fund     (70) (1,698)

 net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities     (1,276) (945)

      2015  2014 
      £’000  £’000 
b) analysis of cashflows       
 Return on investments and servicing of finance:     
Investment income received      679  561 

 Capital expenditure and financial investment:
 Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets     (10) (149)
Obligations under finance leases      (2) (7)
Cash withdrawn from investments      638  - 
Purchase of investments      (6,787) (16,250)
Proceeds from sale of investments and tangible fixed assets    6,865  12,572 

      704  (3,834)
       
Management of liquid resources:      
Increase/decrease in short term deposits      (54)  557

Financing:       
 Other net movement attributable to endowment funds     (95) (75)
Cash donation to endowment funds       165   1,773 
      70  1,698 
        
c) reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds     
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the period      123  (1,963)
 Cash inflow/(outflow) from movement in liquid resources    54  (557)
Movement in net funds in the period      177  (2,520)
Pension scheme curtailment      (833)  -   

net funds at 1 April      261  2,781 

net funds at 31 March      (395) 261 

d) analysis of net funds 
    At 31 Cashflow non cash At 31 
    March  changes March
    2014   2015
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash at bank and in hand    181  123  -  304 
Short term deposits    80  54  -  134 
Pension Scheme Loan    -  -  (833) (833)
        
net funds    261  177  (833) (395)
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notes to the Financial statements

(a) Basis of accounTinG
The accounts have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, as modified 
by the revaluation of investments, and 
in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice Accounting and 
Reporting by Charities (the SORP) revised 
in 2005, applicable accounting standards 
and the Charities Act 2011.  

(b) Basis of consoliDaTion
The accounts incorporate the results 

of the wholly-owned trading company, 
Dulwich Picture Gallery Enterprises 
Limited.  The Trustees have taken 
advantage of the exemption not to prepare 
a separate income and expenditure 
account for the parent charity and the 
consolidated statement of financial 
activities is in a format which complies 
with FRS 3.  

After the gain on investment assets, the 
gross income and result for the parent 
charity for the year ended 31 March 2015 
was £2,882,000 and a surplus of £679,000.   
Separate balance sheets as at 31 March 
2015 are presented for the group as a 
whole and for the parent charity. 

(c) GoinG concern
The Trustees consider that the group 
is able to continue to operate as a going 
concern and that it is appropriate to 
prepare the financial statements on a 
going concern basis.

(d) incominG resources
All incoming resources are included 

in the Statement of Financial Activities 
when the Gallery is entitled to the income 
and the amount can be quantified with 
reasonable accuracy.

Income received in advance is deferred 
until entitlement to the income has 
arisen, at which time it is credited to the 
Statement of Financial Activities.  

Donations and investment income 
are shown in the accounts when the 

conditions for receipt have been met.  
Incoming resources from endowment 
funds are treated as unrestricted.

Legacies are recognised as income 
when there is certainty of receipt and 
the amount due can be ascertained with 
reasonable accuracy.

Gifts in kind, for which the benefit to 
the charity is reasonably quantifiable and 
measureable and excluding volunteer 
time, are recognised as donations in the 
period in which the gift is received.  They 
are valued at the price the charity would 
have had to pay on the open market at the 
time of the gift.  An equivalent amount is 
recognised as a cost in the period.   

(e) expenDiTure
Liabilities are recognised as resources 
expended as soon as there is a legal or 
constructive obligation committing the 
charity to the expenditure.

Irrecoverable VAT is treated as an 
expense.

Expenditure is classified under 
the principal categories of charitable 
activities, the costs of generating funds 
and governance costs.    

The costs of generating funds include 
investment management, staff and other 
costs associated with fundraising, as 
well as the costs of operational activities 
undertaken to generate funds.  

Charitable activities costs include all 
expenditure on the education department, 
the temporary exhibition programme, the 
collection and building, and publicity and 
gallery development.

Governance costs include all 
expenditure on constitutional and 
statutory requirements, costs associated 
with Board meetings and of staff liaising 
with Board members on strategic issues.

Support costs, which include 
administration staff costs and general 
office expenses, have been apportioned to 
the Gallery’s activities.  Further details of 
the basis of apportionment can be found 

in Note 9 to the financial statements.
     

(f) pension cosTs
In March 2014 the LPFA informed the 
Gallery that it would be requiring the 
Gallery to fund its forecast ‘risk-free’ 
deficit on the scheme over the next three 
financial years, rather than allowing the 
deficit to be addressed when the last 
remaining active member retired. A ‘risk 
free’ calculation produces a significantly 
higher figure than the FRS17 basis used for 
accounting purposes. Trustees reviewed 
the scheme and decided in September 
2014 that the scheme was no longer 
affordable for the Gallery and therefore 
closed the scheme to future accruals 
and ceased to be an Admission Body. The 
calculation for closure has been charged 
in the Statement of Financial Activities.
Further details are set out in note 20.   

Other staff are offered membership of 
a defined contribution scheme.  Employer 
contributions to this scheme are charged 
in the Statement of Financial Activities 
as incurred.  Further details are set out in 
note 21.
 

(g) heriTaGe asseTs 
For the Collection that existed at 1 April 
2001, the Trustees are of the opinion that, 
because valuation information cannot 
be obtained at a cost commensurate 
with the benefits to users of the financial 
statements, a valuation approach is not 
practicable and so the Gallery has adopted 
a non-recognition approach. 

The Trustees have formed this opinion on 
the basis that:
- the acquisition of new items for the 
collection is infrequent 
- the amounts involved are not material, 
either year-by-year in respect of income, 
or collectively since 2001, in relation to the 
balance sheet; and 
-  the inclusion of heritage assets acquired 
since 2001 would show a misleading 

1. aCCounting poliCies

position about heritage assets to a reader 
of the accounts..

(h) TanGiBle fixeD asseTs
Assets which are purchased at a cost 
of more than £5,000 are capitalised.  IT 
hardware and software assets which cost 
more than £1,000 are also capitalised as 
too are laptops and central processor 
units.

The cost of buildings, refurbishment, 
and fixtures and fittings acquired or 
incurred from 1 April 2000 is capitalised 
and included in Fixed Assets in the 
Balance Sheet.  These costs are being 
depreciated against the Gallery extension 
fund, on a straight line basis over:
- fifty years in the case of buildings; and 
- ten years in the case of refurbishment 
and fixtures and fittings.  

The cost of furniture and equipment 
purchased for the Gallery is capitalised 
and depreciated against the operating 
fund or restricted funds over:
- four years in the case of furniture, 
gallery and office equipment, computer 
hardware and motor vehicles; and 
- three years in the case of computer 
software. 

Depreciation is charged on all tangible 
fixed assets, except assets under 
construction for which depreciation is not 
charged until the year the asset has been 
brought into use.

(i) leases
Assets held under finance leases, which 
are leases where substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the asset 
have passed to the Gallery, are capitalised 
in the balance sheet and are depreciated 
over their useful economic lives. 

The capital elements of future 
obligations under finance lease contracts 
are included as liabilities in the balance 
sheet. 

Rental payments are apportioned 
between the finance element, which 
is charged against the Statement of 
Financial Activities and represents a 
constant proportion of the balance of 
capital repayments outstanding, and the 
capital element, which reduces the lease 
creditor.

(j) invesTmenTs
Investments are shown in the accounts at 
current market value.  In accordance with 
the SORP, investment management fees 
have been charged against Endowment 
fund capital.  Any unrealised gains 
or losses arising from the policy are 
recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are valued 
at cost.

(k) sTocK
Stock, which comprises catalogues, 
postcards and other goods for sale in the 
shop run by the wholly owned subsidiary, 
Dulwich Picture Gallery Enterprises Ltd, 
is valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value.

(l) foreiGn currencies
Assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are recorded at the rate 
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet 
date.  Transactions in foreign currencies 
are recorded at the rate ruling at the 
time of the transaction.  All exchange 
differences are taken to the Statement of 
Financial Activities.

(m) funD accounTinG
The Gallery maintains general, designated, 
restricted and endowments funds as set 
out in Notes 22 to 25.

Unrestricted funds are available for 
use at the discretion of the Trustees in 
furtherance of the charitable objectives of 
the Gallery.

Designated funds comprise funds 

which have been set aside at the discretion 
of the Trustees for specific purposes.

 Restricted funds are those subject to 
specific restrictions imposed by donors, by 
the purpose of the appeal of conditions of 
the funding, and are credited to restricted 
income in the year in which they are 
received.  Where amounts are not spent 
in full in that year, the balance is carried 
forward in restricted funds and used 
in subsequent years in line with the 
restrictions placed by the donor.

The endowment funds are split 
between permanent endowment funds, 
where the capital must be retained, and 
expendable endowment funds, which 
can be converted into income at the 
discretion of the Trustees.

In March 2014 the LPFA informed 
the Gallery that it would be requiring 
the Gallery to fund its forecast ‘risk-
free’ deficit on the scheme over the 
next three financial years, rather 
than allowing the deficit to be 
addressed when the last remaining 
active member retired. A ‘risk free’ 
calculation produces a significantly 
higher figure than the FRS17 basis 
used for accounting purposes. Trustees 
reviewed the scheme and decided in 
September 2014 that the scheme was 
no longer affordable for the Gallery 
and therefore closed the scheme to 
future accruals and ceased to be an 
Admission Body. The scheme actuary 
calculated the cessation deficit at 30 
September 2014 on a risk-free basis to 
be £826,000 and the LPFA has agreed 
with the Gallery that this deficit be 
repaid over the next five years, at a 
fixed interest rate of 2.9% per annum, 
commencing in October 2015.

a n n u a l  r e V i e w  2 0 1 4 – 1 5 
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2. Voluntary inCoMe

       2015 2014
     unrestricted Restricted endowment  Total Total 
    Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds
         £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000 
        
The Sackler Trust    - - - - 1,000
DCMS / HLF Catalyst endowments    -  -  26  26  555 
Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery    270  -  -  270  225 
The Linbury Trust    -  -  100  100  100
Legacies    21  -  -  21  88 
The Foyle Foundation    -  -  -  -  75 
Patrons    98  -  -  98  72
American Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery   -  67  -  67  48 
Gifts in kind    -  -  -  -  28
Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery   -  137  -  137  22 
The M&G Group (M&G Investments)    -  51  -  51  - 
HLF Lottery Funding    -  43  -  43  - 
Gift Aid    38  -  -  38 - 
Basil Samuel Charitable Trust    -  50  -  50  - 
elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust    -  20  -  20  - 
Foundation Schools    15  -  -  15 - 
Arts Council    -  13  -  13  - 
Zolfo Cooper Foundation    -  -  13  13  - 
Anglo-American Charitable Foundation   -  - 11  11  - 
Bernard Sunley Charitable Foundation   -  10  -  10  - 
Major Donations    56  76  -  132  - 
Other donations and grants    82  48  15 145  462 
         
    580  515  165  1,260  2,675 

3. aCtiVities For generating Funds

4. inVestMent inCoMe

5. inCoMing resourCes FroM Charitable aCtiVities

6. Cost oF generating Funds

       2015  2014  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Shop sales       371  341 
Catering and gallery hire       137  122 
Sponsorship income       156 -
         
       664  463 

       2015  2014  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Dividend income       667  567
Rental income       11 5
Interest income       1 3 
 
       679  575 

       2015  2014  
       £’000        £’000 
 
Admission charges       458  600 
Catalogue sales       136  178 
education events income       107  86 
Other collection income       22  46 
 
       723  910 

    Staff costs  Other  Support       
     direct costs  costs  2015 2014 
        £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000 
 
Cost of goods sold and other trading costs    87   214   53  354  296
Investment management costs     -     95   -    95  75
Costs of generating voluntary income    238   36   41  315  332 
 
     325   345   94  764  703  
Investment management costs have been charged against the endowment funds (see note 23) ; all other costs have been charged against unrestricted funds. 
Staff costs are allocated to governance and trading in relation to estimated time spent. 
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8. goVernanCe Costs

7. Charitable aCtiVities

    unrestricted  Restricted  endowment    
    funds  funds  funds 2015 2014 
    £’000       £’000  £’000      £’000       £’000 
 
Support costs    16   -     -     16  25
Audit fee     7   -     -     7  7
Other professional fees    50   38   -     88  33

    73   38   -     111  65 

Included in “Other professional fees” is £7,278 (2014: £1,795) which was payable to the auditors BDO LLP in respect of taxation and VAT advice.

    Staff costs  Other  Support     
     direct costs  costs  2015 2014 
        £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000       £’000 
 
education     204  180   67  451  412 
exhibitions     231  511   139  881  735 
Collection and building     686   481   236  1,403  1,096 
Publicity     156  102   41  299  219 
Gallery development     -     147   -    147  148  
 
    1,277  1,421  483  3,181  2,610 

 
    unrestricted  Restricted  endowment    
    funds  funds  funds 2015 2014 
These costs are charged as follows:    £’000       £’000  £’000      £’000       £’000 
 
education     160   291   -     451   412 
exhibitions     629   252   -     881   735 
Collection and building     1,265   138   -     1,403   1,096 
Publicity     297   2   -     299   219 
Gallery extension      147   -     147   148  
 
     2,351   830   -     3,181   2,610 

9. support Costs

 Trading  Fundraising education  exhibitions  Collection  Publicity  Governance  2015  2014  
 £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000      £’000  
 
Staff costs 23  22  30  58  91  20  7  251  146
Office expenses 30  20  37  81  129  21  8  326  185
Depreciation -  -  -  -  16  -  -  16  2 

 53  42  67  139  236  41  16  593  333  

The support staff costs are allocated based on staff costs of direct activities.  Office expenses and depreciation are apportioned according to staff costs. 
Included in “Office expenses” is an amount of £93,000 which is irrecoverable VAT on overheads within the year.
Included in “depreciation” is an amount of £2,517  (2014: £2,517) relating to the depreciation of assets held under finance leases.

10. dulwiCh piCture gallery enterprises liMited

The results of Dulwich Picture Gallery enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned trading company, are consolidated with those of the Gallery and 
were as follows in the year ended 31 March 2015: 
     Retail events hire  2015  2014 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  
 
Turnover     390  68  458  405 
Cost of sales     (178) (9) (187) (150)

Gross profit     212  59  271  255 
Administrative expenses       (188) (185)

profit on ordinary activities       83  70
Donation to Dulwich Picture Gallery      (81) (70) 

profit on ordinary activities before taxation      2  -
Tax on profit on ordinary activities       -  - 

retained profit transferred to reserves       2  -
       
The company’s balance sheet as at 31 march 2014 was as follows:    2015 2014
       £’000  £’000 
current assets         
  Stock       64 44  
  Debtors       20 19 
  Cash at bank and in hand       130  93  

       214  156 
creditors          
  Amounts falling due within one year      (171) (116)

net current assets       43  40 

creditors: amounts falling due after more than 1 year       
  Long term loan from parent       (23) (23)

Total assets less current liabilities       20  17 

capital and reserves
  Called up share capital       -  - 
  Profit and loss account       20  17 

equity shareholders’ funds       20  17 
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During the year the average number of employees and their total remuneration,  
including employer’s national Insurance and employer’s pension costs were as follows: 
       2015  2014 
       £’000  £’000 
 
Trading       3  3 
Fundraising       5  5 
education       6  8 
exhibitions       4  4 
Collection and building       49  39 
Communications       6  5 
Support       7  6  
 
       80  70 
         
Full time equivalent staff       55 53
         
 
       2015  2014  
       £’000  £’000 
 
Gross pay       1,613  1,408 
employer’s national Insurance       128 100 
employer’s pension costs       109  40 

Total remuneration       1,850  1,548 

The number of staff receiving emoluments greater than £60,000 in the year was:
       2015  2014  
£60,001 - £70,000       - 1
£70,001 - £80,000       - 1
£80,001 - £90,000       - -
£90,001 - £100,000       2 -

       2 2
 
employers’ pension contributions made on behalf of these two employees totalled £14,570 (2014: £26,729).

The Trustees have not received any remuneration or reimbursement of expenses during the year.

These staff numbers do not include artists running education programmes or Gallery guides.  The average monthly number of artists and guides paid was 17 
(2014: 14) and their gross pay was £ 66,320  (2014: £65,000).  A number of guides waived their fees.

Staff are offered membership of a defined contribution pension scheme through Standard Life; see note 21.
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11. staFF reMuneration 12. inVestMents

       Fixed asset 
       investments
       2015 2014 
       £’000 £’000 

Market value as at 1 April 2014       22,277  18,670 
Acquisitions at cost       6,787  16,250 
Disposals at carrying value       (6,865) (12,572)
Cash drawn down from investments      (543) -
Investment management fees       (95) (74)
net gain on investments charged to Statement of Financial Activities    1,709   2 

market value as at 31 march 2015      23,270   22,277  
 
The proceeds from the sale of investments during the year are reinvested during the year.

Rathbone Investment Management Limited were appointed as fund managers on 8 February 2013 and have considerable freedom to manage asset allocations, 
within a framework of maximum allocations as decided by the Trustees. These, and the actual allocations as at 31 March 2015, are as follows: 

       Maximum   Year end  
       allocation  allocation 
       %  %  

uK equities       75   26 
international equities       75    

north American        8
european        6 
Japanese        12 
Asia Pacific        6 
emerging markets        1 
Global         14 

Bonds       90   0 
uK bonds        1 
International          13 

property       25   7 
infrastructure        20   2 
commodities        1 
private equity       25   0 
cash       100   3 
 
Total        100   
 
Trustees reviewed the Gallery’s investment policy in March 2014 and decided to use the provisions of the Charities Act 2011 to move to a total return approach 
as they felt this would better enable Rathbones to deliver return to the charity while protecting the long-term value of the investments. The revised policy is to 
achieve a total return of 3.5% above RPI inflation, allowing the Gallery to withdraw 3.5% of the value of the portfolio as either income or capital to contribute to 
its running costs each year. Returns above this level are retained within the investments. At the year end the market value of the investment portfolios held at 
Rathbones was £23,270,000 (2014: £22,277,000), an unrealised gain of 4.5% over the year after taking account of the withdrawals for running costs under the 
agreed policy and withdrawals of an additional £490k to cover operating deficit and provide working capital. 

This included a single holding of 1,844,851 units (2014: 1,838,651 units) of the Rathbones unit Trust Management – Active Income and Growth Fund inc which 
represents the funds secured under the HLF Catalyst endowment Scheme; at year end its market value was £2,132,924 representing 97.6% of the overall total 
market value of the investment portfolio. no other holding exceeded 5% of the portfolio’s value.

The Gallery also owns the whole of the issued shared capital of Dulwich Picture Gallery enterprises Ltd, comprising 2 shares of £1 each.  Dulwich Picture Gallery 
enterprises Ltd is incorporated in the uK (registered number 03173890) where it undertakes all of its operations.  Its principal activities comprise the management 
and operation of the retail shop at the Dulwich Picture Gallery, the running of events for both corporate and private clients and provision of other services, 
principally catalogue distribution, on behalf of Dulwich Picture Gallery.
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13. heritage assets

         
     collection Building Total
Gallery and Group:     £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost:         
As at 1 April 2014     379  -  379 
Additions     -  -  - 

as at 31 march 2015     379  -  379 

There were no additions to heritage assets during 2014-15 (2014: none), and there have been no disposals of heritage assets in the last five years.
 
five year summary of heritage asset transactions 
  2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
additions:  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Building  -  -  -  -  - -
Collection  221  -  -  -  -  221 

  221  -  -  -  -  221 
 
additional information on the Gallery’s heritage assets       
The Gallery has two heritage assets – the collection of paintings and the original Soane building.     
 
collection:
Dulwich Picture Gallery is home to one of the most important collections of european 17th and 18th century Old Master paintings in the world. Its outstanding 
collection contains 658 paintings, including major works by Rembrandt, Van Dyck, Murillo, Poussin, Guercino, Watteau, Dou, Gainsborough, Rubens and 
Canaletto. There is also a small collection of five sculptures and about a hundred works on paper, as well as a collection of antique furniture. The main collection 
was bequeathed to Dulwich College by the painter and art dealer Sir Francis Bourgeois in his will in 1811, but some pictures date back to the collection of edward 
Alleyn, who founded Dulwich College in 1616.

The value of the collection of pictures and historic furniture held at the Gallery is not reflected in the accounts. These are heritage assets whose historic value is 
not readily ascertainable, and the Trustees consider that the cost of obtaining a valuation would outweigh the benefit to users of the accounts.  
 
preservation and management: 
The Gallery has a rolling conservation programme for paintings and frames for which it raises external funds wherever possible. expenditure which, in the Trustees’ 
view, is required to preserve or clearly prevent further deterioration of individual collection items or the building is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Activities when it is incurred. 

     

Building:
Bourgeois’ will specified that the collection was to be available ‘for the inspection of the public’ and  that the architect for the new gallery to house it should be 
his friend, Sir John Soane (1754-1837).  The brief was not just to build a gallery for the pictures, but also almshouses for six old ladies (now exhibition rooms) and a 
mausoleum for its founders.  The building has influenced the design of art galleries ever since. Five new rooms were later added across the front, and parts of the 
Gallery had to be rebuilt after being bombed in the war.     

In 1999-2000, Rick Mather Architects refurbished the Gallery and added a glass and bronze cloister linking the original building with a new art studio, the Linbury 
Room and café.        
 

Balance sheet recognition
In the opinion of the Trustees, reliable information on cost or value is not available for the Gallery’s collection, including the building.  This is owing to the lack of 
information on purchase cost; the lack of comparable market values; the diverse nature of the objects; and the volume of items held.  
 

Furthermore, in the Trustees’ opinion, conventional valuation approaches lack sufficient reliability and, even if valuations could be obtained, this would not be at a 
cost commensurate with any benefits to the Gallery’s management, curatorial staff, the public, or users of the financial statements.   
 

For this reason the Collection, large proportions of which were gifted to the Gallery at nil cost and are incomparable in nature, are not recognised as assets in the 
Gallery’s Balance Sheet.

Heritage assets acquired since April 2001 are also not reported in the balance sheet.  This is based on the Trustees opinion that the acquisition of new items for 
the collection is infrequent; the amounts involved are not material, either year-by-year in respect of income, or collectively since 2001, in relation to the balance 
sheet; and the inclusion of heritage assets acquired since 2001 at a total cost/value of £379,000 would show a misleading position about heritage assets to a 
reader of the accounts.         
        
 

14. gallery extension

The fixed asset Gallery extension represents capitalised expenditure incurred on the Gallery’s development project by Rick Mather Architects completed in May 2000.  
The fixed asset relates to additions to the freehold property, the acquisition of leasehold property, refurbishment and fixtures and fittings relating to the cloister, 
Sackler art studio, Linbury Room, and café..  The Soane building itself, which forms part of the Gallery’s inalienable assets, is not capitalised as noted above.

The additions from 2010-11 represent capitalised expenditure incurred on the new shop and entrance hall completed during 2010-11, work on the refurbishment 
of the public toilets and the creation of a new accessible entrance to the ticketing hall, completed during 2011-12, and work on the Gallery entrance lunettes and 
refurbishments of rooms 11 and 12, completed during January 2013. During 2013-14, the Sackler Centre was refitted and the Gallery underwent some refurbishment.

   freehold Gallery fixtures &  lease

   development extension fittings acquisition Total

   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

cosT:         
As at 1 April 2014   3,144  792  12  258  4,206 

Additions   -  -  -  -  - 

Disposals   -  - - - - 

as at 31 march 2015   3,144  792  12  258  4,206 

         
DepreciaTion:

As at 1 April 2014   881  228  12  72  1,193 

Charge for the year   62  79  -  5  146 

Disposals   -  -  -  -  - 

as at 31 march 2015   943  307 12  77  1,340 

neT BooK value

as at 31 march 2015   2,201  485  -  181  2,866

As at 31 March 2014   2,263  564  -  186  3,013
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15. other Fixed assets 17. debtors

18. Creditors: aMounts Falling due within one year

16. long terM debtor

     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     2015 2015 2014 2014
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Amounts due from subsidiary undertaking    113  -  67  - 
Other debtors     173  193  117  105 
Prepayments and accrued income     129  131  147  147  
 
     415  324  331  252  

     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     2015 2015 2014 2014
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Trade creditors     154  184  279  286 
Amounts due to subsidiary undertaking    2  -  -  - 
Other creditors     71  71  41  44 
Accruals     310  320  179  179
Deferred income     81  103  30  37 
LPFA Loan on pension deficit - payments due within 1 year inclusive of interest  165  165  -  -
 
     783  843  529  546 

     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     2015 2015 2014 2014
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  

Loan to subsidiary undertaking     23  -  23  -  

A loan of £45,000 was advanced by the Gallery to its wholly owned trading company, Dulwich Picture Gallery enterprises Limited (DPGe) on 1 June 2004. It is 
secured by a floating charge over the assets of the company and carries interest at a rate of 1% above Bank of england base rate. During 2010-11 the Trustees 
of the Gallery reviewed the loan agreement and formally agreed to extend the loan on a rolling two year basis; this was renewed again in May 2014.  Loan 
repayments of £9,000 each were made by DPGe in March 2005 and January 2006, and a further £4,000 was repaid during 2006-07, leaving a balance of £23,000. 

expenditure on equipment has been capitalised as set out below:

Gallery and Group  Gallery   Office  Office  IT  Motor Assets under Total 
  equipment  equipment  furniture  equipment vehicles construction 
  £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 
 
cosT:        
At 1 April 2014  199  57  47  133  10  45  491 
Additions  -  -  -  10  -  -  10 
Transfers between asset classes  -  -  -  45 -  (45) - 

at 31 march 2015  199  57  47  188  10  -  501  
        
DepreciaTion:        
At 1 April 2014  199  52  47  143  5  -  446 
Charge for year  -  2  -  11 3  -  16 

at 31 march 2015  199  54  47  154  8  -  462 
        
neT BooK value        

at 31 march 2015  -  3  -  34 2  -  39 

at 1 april 2014  -  5  -  (10) 5 45 45 

Assets are used primarily for charitable purposes; a small proportion is used for fundraising and governance.    
 

Included in Office equipment are assets held under finance lease at a cost of £10,067  (2014: £10,067); the net book value of these assets is £ 2,516 (2014: 
£5,033).

Deferred income     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     2015 2015 2014 2014
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Deferred income as at 1 April     30  37  7  7 
Released in year     (30) (37) (7) (7)
Deferred in year     81  103  30  37 

Deferred income as at 31 march     81  103  30  37
 
Incoming resources related to the future provision of services are deferred until the future services are provided and entitlement to the income is earned.

19. Creditors: aMounts Falling due aFter More than 1 year

     Gallery Group Gallery Group
     2015 2015 2014 2014
     £’000          £’000          £’000          £’000  
 
Obligation under finance lease due in more than 1 year   3  3  5  5
Long term liability to LPFA pension scheme, inclusive of interest   668  668  -  -
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20. deFined beneFit pension sCheMe liability

Staff in post prior to February 2002 were offered, after one year’s service, membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension 
scheme administered by the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) of which the Gallery, in common with many other charities, is an “Admission body”. 

Following transitional arrangements this scheme was closed to new members on 16 May 2003.  The average number of employees in the scheme in the year was 
1 (2013/14: 1).  The scheme is funded with assets being held by the LPFA trustees. A formal valuation was completed by the scheme actuary as at 31 March 2013 
and projected forward to give the disclosure required under FRS17 “Retirement Benefits” in the 2013/14 accounts (£533,000). These are stated on a ‘fair value’ 
basis.

In March 2014 the LPFA informed the Gallery that it would be requiring the Gallery to fund its forecast ‘risk-free’ deficit on the scheme over the next three 
financial years, rather than allowing the deficit to be addressed when the last remaining active member retired. A ‘risk free’ calculation produces a significantly 
higher figure than the FRS17 basis used for accounting purposes. Trustees reviewed the scheme and decided in September 2014 that the scheme was no longer 
affordable for the Gallery and therefore closed the scheme to future accruals and ceased to be an Admission Body. The scheme actuary calculated the cessation 
deficit at 30 September 2014 on a risk-free basis to be £826,000 and the LPFA has agreed with the Gallery that this deficit be repaid over the next five years, at a 
fixed interest rate of 2.9% per annum, commencing in October 2015.

As a result of this decision, the sole remaining active member became a deferred member in the scheme on 30 September 2014, and the pension benefits 
accrued in the scheme up to that date will be paid out by the LPFA in due course under the scheme rules. The LPFA will also continue to meet the pension 
obligations to the other pensioners and deferred members. The Gallery has agreed with the sole remaining active member that it will make future contributions to 
his pension via his SIPP for as long as he continues to be an employee of the Gallery.

Trustees decided in March 2015 that the sums required to meet the pension deficit would be taken from the Designated Funds by means of redesignation, with 
the balance (£332,000) being taken from expendable endowment Funds.

The cessation cost of closing the LPFA  scheme was (£299,000) This is the balance of the FRS Liability £533,000 less the final LPFA figure (£826,000) plus 6 months 
(Oct 12 - Mar 14) of interest payable under the agreement with the LPFA (£6,000).

In accordance with FRS 17, the key assumptions used by the actuary in 2014 to ascertain the pension liability are as per the table below. For 2015, the table is now 
irrelevant but for compliance the table is shown for comparative reasons.

The assets in the scheme and the expected rates of return were: 
     2015   2014 
     Long term  Assets at  Long term  Assets at 
     return  31 March  return  31 March 
Breakdown of the expected return on assets by category    %p.a. £’000 %p.a. £’000
 
equities      -     -    6.90%  727 
LDI/Cashflow matching      -     -    3.60%  82 
Target return portfolio      -     -    6.30%  411  
Alternative assets      -     -    n/a  -   
Infrastructure      -     -    6.50%  55 
Commodities      -     -    6.30%  14
Property      -    -   5.70%  41 
Cash      -     -    3.40%  41

       -    1,371 

Mortality (based on retirement at age 65)    Males Females Males Females
Current pensioners     n/a n/a 22.1 years 25.7 years
Future pensioners     n/a n/a 24.4 years 28.0 years

The post retirement mortality is based on Club Vita mortality analysis which has then been projected using the medium cohort projection and allowing  
for a minimum rate of improvement of 1%.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 
       2015  2014 
       £’000 £’000
 
Fair value of the scheme assets         - 1,371 
Present value of funded liabilities       -  1,904 
         
net pension liability       -  (533)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Finance Activities are as follows: 
       2015  2014 
       £’000 £’000
 
Current service cost         - 24 
Interest costs on pension scheme liabilities      -  67
expected return on employer assets      -  (72)
         
Total       -  19 

The key assumptions: 
      2015   2014 
      % p.a.   % p.a.   
 
Price increases      -   3.5 
CPI increases      -   2.7 
Salary increases       -   4.5 
Pension increases      -   2.7 
Discount rate      -  4.4  
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21. stakeholder pension sCheMe

Prior to August 2014 the Gallery had designated Standard Life to provide a stakeholder pension to full-time and part-time employees who had completed 3 
months’ continuous service, subject to a minimum employee contribution of £20 per month.   

In August 2014 the Gallery became subject to auto-enrolment provisions under section 1 of the Pensions Act 2008. The Gallery has designated Standard Life as its 
auto-enrolment provider using its Group Self Invested Personal Pension scheme. All employees are automatically enrolled with a minimum employee contribution 
of 3% and receive a Gallery contribution of 6% unless they opt out. 

The average number of employees in the scheme in the year was 32 (2014: 10). employer contributions in the year were £61,000 (2014: £22,000)   
         
      

Analysis of actuarial losses: 
       2015  2014 
       £’000 £’000
 
Actual return on plan assets less expected return on pension scheme assets    -  (28)
experience gains and losses arising on scheme liabilities     -  (151)
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities   -  (1)
         
       -  (180)

Reconciliation of the present value of funded liabilities: 
       2015  2014 
       £’000 £’000
 
Opening present value of funded liabilities      (533) (403)
Current service cost       -  (24)
net return on assets       -  5 
Actuarial gains/(losses)       -  (180)
Contributions by scheme participants      -  69 
Cessation of Pension Scheme       533 - 
closing present value of funded liabilities      -  (533)

Reconciliation of the fair value of the scheme assets: 
       2015  2014 
       £’000 £’000
 
Opening fair value of the scheme assets      1,371  1,272 
expected return on scheme assets       -  72 
Actuarial gains/(losses)       -  (14)
Contributions by employer       - 68 
Contributions by scheme participants      -  6 
estimated benefits paid net of transfers in      -  (33)
Cessation of Pension Scheme       (1,371) - 
closing fair value of the scheme assets      -  1,371 

Amounts for the current and previous accounting periods:  2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
 
Value of assets    -  1,371 1,272  1,079  1,037 
Present value of liabilities    -  (1,904) (1,675) (1,459) (1,245)
Surplus/(deficit)    -  (533) (403) (380) (208)
 
experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets   -  (14) 91  (61) 10 
Percentage of assets     -1.0% 7.2% -5.7% 1.0%

experience gains/(losses) on scheme liabilities   -  (165) -  -  371 
Percentage of liabilities    -  -8.7% -  -  29.8%
         
cumulative actuarial gains/(losses)   -  (618) (438) (370) (159)
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22. endowMent Funds

        Balance
  Balance b/fwd Incoming Resources  Gains b/fwd at 31 
  at 1 April 2014 resources expanded Transfers & losses March 2015
          £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 
 
expendable endowment funds (see below)  829  -  (4) (332) 68  560 
Catalyst endowment fund  1,982  65  (9) -  161  2,199 
Sackler Director fund  2,526  -  (11) -  206  2,720 
Sackler education fund  1,080  -  (5) -  88  1,163 
edith Callam Memorial fund  319  -  (1) -  26  344 
Capital fund  14,251  100  (65) -  1,160 15,447 

Total endowment funds  20,987  165  (95) (332) 1,709  22,433
 
The Sackler Director fund represents donations from the Dr Mortimer & Theresa Sackler Foundation for the Sackler Director post.

The Sackler education fund is specifically earmarked for the work of The Sackler Centre for Arts education at the Gallery and contributed towards the cost of a 
post in the education department.  

The Catalyst endowment fund is the Heritage Lottery Fund/Department for Culture Media and Sports Catalyst: endowments fund. This relates to an endowment 
fund set up to provide an annual income to support core costs associated with learning at the Gallery.

The edith Callam Memorial Trust arises from the estate of edith Margaret Callam who died in October 2005.  The Gallery was entitled to a half share of her 
residuary estate which is to be held in trust with the capital invested to produce an income to be spent on funding the Gallery’s temporary exhibitions.  

The remaining endowment fund capital represents the capital fund raised towards securing the Gallery’s future.

23. restriCted Capital Funds

        Balance
  Balance b/fwd Incoming Resources  Gains b/fwd at 31 
  at 1 April 2014 resources expanded Transfers & losses March 2015
          £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 

Gallery extension fund (previously Development fund) 3,092  -  (147) -  -  2,945 
Asset fund  27  -  -  (27) -  - 

Total restricted capital funds  3,119  -  (147) (27) -  2,945

The Gallery extension fund arose initially from an appeal for the development of the Gallery which was completed in 2000.  A new development project was 
started during 2010-11. As at 31 March 2015, £2,866,000 of the fund is represented by the fixed asset Land and Buildings - Gallery extension.  Depreciation is 
being charged against the original fund over the remaining life of the asset, and this part of the fund will then be extinguished.  Additions during 2010-11 and 
2011-12 are being depreciated over ten years. The remaining £79,000 of the fund is held in cash and provides a reserve towards increased maintenance costs. 

The Asset fund represents fixed assets already purchased using donations received from the Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery and others.

24. restriCted inCoMe Funds

        Balance
  Balance b/fwd Incoming Resources  Gains b/fwd at 31 
  at 1 April 2014 resources expanded Transfers & losses March 2015
          £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 

education funds  365  171  (294) -  -  242 
exhibition funds  32  230  (260) -  -  2 
Collection fund  143  171  (127) (80) -  107 
Transition funds  -  43  (43) -  -  - 
Survey funds  -  2  (2) -  -  - 
Prize funds  2  -  -  -  -  2  

Total restricted income funds  542  617  (726) (80) -  353

The incoming resources for restricted funds represent non-endowment monies given for, and restricted to, specific purposes.   

The education fund represents funds raised for and by the work of the education department.  Investment income of £31,155 from the Sackler education 
endowment has been credited to this fund.  

The exhibition fund represents donations and sponsorship for temporary exhibitions.  The unexpended balance on the fund at the year end arises from previously 
unspent investment income.  

The Collection fund represents funds raised for the conservation of pictures in the collection and their frames,  for research on the collection and its 
documentation, and for the maintenance and restoration of the Gallery buildings and grounds. A review exercise in 2014 identified that a number of small sums 
held over despite their projects having been completed; together these totalled £80k and were transferred to general funds.  

The income from the prize fund investments is used to fund art prizes at local schools.

expendable endowment funds
        Balance
        c/fwd at
   Balance b/fwd Incoming Resources  Gains and 31 March
   at 1 April 2014 resources expended Transfers losses 2015
   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Lupton fund   157  -  (1) (169) 13  - 
esmee Fairbairn fund   233  -  (1) -  19  251 
Weston fund   439  -  (2) (163) 36  310 

Total expendable endowment funds  829  -  (4) (332) 68  561

In March 2015, the Trustees agreed that (£332,000) would be taken from the expendable endowment Funds to fund the defined benefit pension scheme deficit. 
This was funded by (£169,000) from the Lupton Fund and (£163,000) from the Weston Fund.

The Weston fund represents a donation from The Garfield Weston Foundation which has been specified as expendable endowment; the Trustees have the power 
to use the funds to meet expenditure for any of the purposes of the Gallery. 

The esmeé Fairbairn fund represents a donation from The esmeé Fairbairn Foundation which has been specified as expendable endowment; the Trustees have 
the power to use the funds to meet expenditure for any of the purposes of the Gallery.
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25. unrestriCted Funds

         Balance
   Balance b/fwd Incoming Resources  Gains b/fwd at 31 
   at 1 April 2014 resources expanded Transfers & losses March 2015
           £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000         £’000 

Designated funds:         
Stanley Scott fund   81  -  -  (81) -  - 
endowment income fund   313  -  -  (313) -  - 
Other exhibitions fund   100  -  -  (100) -  - 
Total designated funds   494  -  -  (494) -  - 

operating fund   199  2,544  (3,388) 1,226  -  582 

pension reserve   (533) -  -  (293) -  (826)

Total unrestricted funds   160  2,544  (3,388)  439  -  (244)
         
In March 2015, the Trustees agreed that (£494,000) would be taken from the Designated Funds by means of redesignation to fund the defined benefit pension 
scheme deficit. The balance (£332,000) has been taken from the expendable endowment Funds.

The Operating fund represents all resources of the Gallery which are neither restricted by the terms of the donation nor designated by the Trustees for specific 
purposes.

The Pension reserve, which is in deficit, represents the actual liability in respect of the final salary pension scheme to which some current, previous and retired 
members of staff belong. The Gallery closed the scheme in September 2014 and has agreed with the LPFA that this deficit is to be repaid over the next five years, 
at a fixed interest rate of 2.9% per annum. These payments are charged against the Operating fund.

27. related party transaCtions

During the year Zolfo Cooper Foundation donated £12,250 towards the Catalyst endowment. Simon Freakley, the Chairman of the Dulwich Picture Gallery of 
Board of Trustees, was Chief executive Officer of Zolfo Cooper europe. 

Within the year the following freelanced for the Gallery:  eric Pearson Furniture (husband of Ian Dejardin) consulted on the emily Carr exhibition design project 
and invoiced £2,756 and Dr Kenneth Wolfe (husband of Gillian Wolfe) consulted for the Contextual Lecture Series and invoiced £2,656

The charity has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS8 “Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing transactions and balances with group 
undertakings.

26. alloCation oF net assets between Funds

     Debtors due
   Investments Fixed after more net Current Long term Total
    Assets than 1 year Assets Liabilities
          £’000        £’000  £’000       £’000        £’000        £’000

endowment funds   21,843  -  -  29  -  21,872 
expendable endowments funds   561  -  -  -  -  561 
Restricted capital funds   -  2,866  -  79  -  2,945 
Restricted income funds   2  -  -  351  -  353 
Operating fund   864  39   (317) (3) 583 
Pension reserve   -  -  -  (158) (668) (826)
         
   23,270  2,905  -  (16) (671) 25,488 
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structure, goVernance anD managementobJectiVes anD actiVities

our purpose
Dulwich Picture Gallery was established 
more than 200 years ago because its 
founders believed as many people as 
possible should see great paintings. 

It is the world’s first art gallery designed expressly 
to display paintings to the public. We have a 
remarkable and world-class collection of Old 
Master paintings and a famous building by Sir 
John Soane, allowing visitors to experience those 
paintings in an intimate and welcoming setting. 

our goals
Our vision is to be celebrated by our 
visitors and peers as the perfect place to 
visit and experience art and an example for 
others to follow.

In December 2014 Trustees approved a new 
strategic framework for the period through to 
2018. This set out five key strategic objectives, 
as well as an underlying objective of achieving 
financial sustainability by ensuring the Gallery 
runs an operating surplus each year:

•	 	To	establish	Dulwich	Picture	Gallery’s	identity	
as the perfect place to experience art;

•	 	To	 run	 a	 pioneering	 and	 coherent	 artistic	
programme which appeals to all our 
audiences;

•	 	To	 increase	 the	 numbers	 and	 range	 of	 our	
visitors;

•	 To	increase	income	from	all	sources;
•	 	To	 improve	 organisational	 efficiency	 and	

governance.

A further scheme was approved by the Charity 
Commissioners in 1995 regulating the Trustees’ 
powers of investment.  An additional scheme 
in 1998 gave Trustees the power to invest in a 
subsidiary trading company and to vary certain 
of the clauses in the 1994 scheme.   In September 
2002, January 2005 and January 2006 amendments 
were made under this power by the Trustees in 
special meetings, to remove restrictions on the 
composition of the Board of Trustees.  Under the 
scheme as amended the Board of Trustees is to 
consist of at least six persons appointed by the 
Trustees at a special meeting or as a separate 
agenda item at an ordinary meeting.  One Trustee 
shall be appointed with the agreement of the 
President and Council of the Royal Academy and 
one with the agreement of the governing bodies of 
Dulwich College, Alleyn’s School and James Allen’s 
Girls’ School.  In seeking new Trustees, the Board 
analyses the skills and experience of existing 
members and aims to cover identified gaps and 
to achieve an appropriate balance.  Potential 
Trustees meet the Nominations Committee and 
Director before being proposed to the full Board.   

On appointment, new Trustees receive a 
package of material including details of the 
Charity’s constitution, copies of recent accounts 
and minutes of recent Board meetings.  They 
are then invited to an induction session at the 
Gallery, typically lasting for half a day, at which 
they are able to meet the staff and to spend time 
with the Director and Heads of Department 
to gain an understanding of the Gallery’s 
operations.  Further training for Trustees is 
arranged according to need.  

The Trustees have approved a scheme of 
delegations so that it is clear which decisions are 
reserved to the Board and which are delegated to 
the Director and staff.  In essence, the Board of 
Trustees is responsible for setting policy and the 
Director and staff for implementation.  Among 
matters reserved to the Trustees are appointment 
of senior staff, approval of the Gallery’s budget and 
financial statements, approval of exhibitions policy 
and individual loans from the collection, and 
approval of any significant changes in operations. 

subsidiary CoMpany
In July 2003 the Charity Commission approved a 
further scheme extending the Trustees’ powers to 
conduct trading activity.  Nevertheless, because of 
the scale of this activity it was decided to transfer 
responsibility for it to Dulwich Picture Gallery 
Enterprises Limited (DPGE). DPGE is a company 
limited by shares, with 100% of the share capital 
being held by two representative Trustees on 
behalf of the Trustees of Dulwich Picture Gallery.  
The Board of Directors of DPGE includes three 
external members as well as two Gallery Trustees 
and two members of staff.  DPGE has run the 
Gallery shop since 1 June 2004.  From 1 April 2005 
it also became responsible for the commercial 
hire of Gallery space.  The company is financed 
by a loan from the Gallery which is secured by a 
floating charge over the company’s assets.  The 
loan is interest bearing and during 2011-12 the 
Trustees of Dulwich Picture Gallery reviewed the 
loan agreement and formally agreed to extend 
the loan on a rolling two year basis. 49% of the 
initial loan has been repaid to date.

stateMent on publiC beneFit
The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s 
general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Gallery’s aims and objectives and in planning 
future activities. Dulwich Picture Gallery delivers public benefit through preserving, displaying and 
interpreting the permanent collection and Sir John Soane’s building, and by engaging people in the 
visual arts through our exhibition programme, scholarship, and educational and outreach work.

struCture, goVernanCe and ManageMent 
The present constitution of Dulwich Picture Gallery dates from 1994 when the Charity 
Commissioners approved a scheme of regulation under the Charities Act 1993.  under 
this scheme the object of the Charity is “to further the education of the public in the 
appreciation of the fine arts by preserving and maintaining the [Gallery] building and 
the collection belonging thereto as an independent gallery for the exhibition of works 
of fine art to the public and for charitable educational purposes connected therewith”.  
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statement oF trustees’ resPonsibilities

Charity law requires the Trustees to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year in 
accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under 
charity law the Trustees must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the group and charity and of the incoming 
resources and application of resources, including 
the income and expenditure, of the group for that 
period. 

In preparing these financial statements the 
Trustees are required to:

•	 	select	 suitable	 accounting	 policies	 and	 then	
apply them consistently;

•	 	make	 judgments	 and	 accounting	 estimates	
that are reasonable and prudent;

•	 	state	 whether	 applicable	 UK	 Accounting	
Standards have been followed, subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements;

•	 	prepare	the	financial	statements	on	the	going	
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the charity will continue in 
business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping  
adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the charity’s transactions and 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the group and parent charity 
and enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Charities Act 2011. 

They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the charity and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection 
of fraud and other irregularities.

Financial statements are published on the 
charity’s website in accordance with legislation 
in the United Kingdon governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements, which 
may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
The maintenance and integrity of the charity’s 
website is the responsibility of the trustees. 
The trustees’ responsibility also extends to the 
ongoing integrity of the financial statements 
contained therein.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Trustees have responsibility for ensuring 
effective risk management processes are in place 
across the charity.  

The major risks to the charity’s business, 
finances and reputation, as identified by the 
Trustees, have been reviewed and systems have 
been put in place to mitigate those risks.  A full 
risk register has been compiled and is held at the 
Gallery’s offices.  This is reviewed by the Trustees 
on an annual basis.

This Report of the Board of Trustees of Dulwich 
Picture Gallery was approved at its meeting on 1 
July 2015 and signed on their behalf by

Simon Freakley Radhika Radhakrishnan
Chair of Trustees  Trustee

This report is made solely to the charity’s trustees, 
as a body, in accordance with the Charities Act 
2011.  Our audit work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the charity’s trustees those 
matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
charity and the charity’s trustees as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

RESPECTIvE RESPoNSIBILITIES  
of TRUSTEES ANd AUdIToR
As explained more fully in the Statement of 
Trustees’ Responsibilities, the trustees are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give 
a true and fair view.

We have been appointed as auditors under 
section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in 
accordance with regulations made under section 
154 of that Act. Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).  Those 
standards require us to comply with the Financial 
Reporting Council’s (FRC’s) Ethical Standards for 
Auditors.

SCoPE of THE AUdIT of  
THE fINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A description of the scope of an audit of financial 
statements is provided on the FRC’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

oPINIoN oN fINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the financial statements:
•	 give	 a	 true	 and	 fair	 view	 of	 the	 state	 of	 the	
group’s and the parent charity’s affairs as at 31 
March 2015 and of the group’s incoming resources 
and application of resources for the year then 
ended;
•	 have	 been	 properly	 prepared	 in	 accordance	
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice; and
•	 have	 been	 prepared	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	
requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

MATTERS oN wHICH wE ARE  
REqUIREd To REPoRT By ExCEPTIoN
We have nothing to report in respect of the 
following matters where the Charities Act 2011 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•	 the	 information	 given	 in	 the	 Report	 of	 the	
Board of Trustees is inconsistent in any material 
respect with the financial statements; or
•	 sufficient	 accounting	 records	 have	 not	 been	
kept; or
•	 the	 parent	 charity	 financial	 statements	 are	
not in agreement with the accounting records 
and returns; or
•	 we	have	not	received	all	the	information	and	
explanations we require for our audit.

Bdo LLP
Statutory Auditor, 
Norwich
United Kingdom
23 October 2015 

BDO LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 
1212 of the Companies Act 2006.
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in 
England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).

the trustees are responsible For preparing the Report of the Board of 
Trustees and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

inDePenDent auDitor’s rePort

we haVe audited the FinanCial stateMents of Dulwich Picture Gallery for the 
year ended 31 March 2015 which comprise the Group Statement of Financial Activities, 
the Group and Parent Charity Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the 
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and united Kingdom Accounting Standards (united Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).
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loans From the Permanent collection conserVation ProJects  
aPril 2014 - march 2015

the Following loans FroM the 
perManent ColleCtion were  
approVed by trustees and took  
plaCe during 2014/15:

Claude-Joseph vernet, Italian Landscape, 
loaned to RICHARd wILSoN ANd THE 
TRANSfoRMATIoN of EURoPEAN 
LANdSCAPE PAINTING at the Yale Centre for 
British Art, New Haven from 6 March 2014- 1 
June 2014 then toured to the National Museum 
of Wales, Cardiff from 5 July to 29 October 2014

william Hogarth, Portrait of a Man, Thomas 
Gainsborough, A Couple in a Landscape and 
Richard wilson, Tivoli, the Cascaelle and the Villa 
of Maecenas loaned to HoGARTH, REyNoLdS, 
TURNER: BRITISH PAINTING ANd THE RISE 
of ModERNITy at the Fondazione Roma Arte-
Musei, Rome, 15 April 2014- 20 July 2014

Raphael, Saint Francis of Assisi and Saint Anthony 
of Padua both loaned to PERUGINo: RAPHAEL’S 
MASTER at the Musée Jacquemart- André, Paris, 
from 12 September 2014 – 19 January 2015

Jacob van Ruisdael, Landscape with Windmills 
near Haarlem, John Constable after Ruisdael, 
Landscape with Windmills near Haarlem and 
Nicholas Poussin, Landscape with a Roman Road, 
were all loaned to CoNSTABLE: THE MAKING 
of A MASTER at the V&A, London, from 20 
September 2014- 11 January 2015

Rembrandt, A Young Man, possibly the Artist’s Son 
Titus loaned to REMBRANdT ANd THE dUTCH 
GoLdEN AGE at the Museum of Fine Arts, 
Budapest, from 28 October 2014- 18 February 
2015

Peter Paul Rubens, Hagar in the Desert and Jean-

Antoine watteau, Les Plaisirs du Bal loaned to 
the Royal Academy of Arts, London, for RUBENS 
ANd HIS LEGACy 24 January – 10 April 2015

Piero di Cosimo, A Young Man loaned to the 
National Gallery of Art, Washington DC, for the 
exhibition PAINTER-PoET of RENAISSANCE 
fLoRENCE 1 February- 3 May 2015. The 
exhibition will then tour to the Galleria degli 
Uffizi, Florence, from 23 June – 27 September 
2015

Giovanni Antonio Canal (Canaletto) A View 
of Walton Bridge loaned to CANALETTo: 
CELEBRATING BRITAIN at Compton Verney, 
Warwick, from 14 March – 14th June 2015. 
The exhibition will then tour to the Holburne 
Museum, Bath from 27 June-11 Oct 2015 and 
then Abbot Hall Art Gallery, Cumbria from 24 
October – February 2016

Juan Bautista Martinez del Mazo, Luis del Mazo 
loaned to the exhibition vELázqUEz at the 
Grand Palais, Paris, 25 March- 13 July 2015

CoMpleted

ANNIBALE CARRACCI
Head of an Old Man, DPG286
Adopted by Jean-Luc Baroni
Conservator: Nicole Ryder

ATTRIBUTEd To MATHIEU LE NAIN
Musicians, DPG180
Adopted by Charles Wynn-Evans and Alex 
McColl
Conservator: Sophia Plender

JoSHUA REyNoLdS
An Officer on Horseback, DPG333
Adopted by the Bernard Sunley Charitable 
Foundation
Conservator: Nicole Ryder; Thomas Proctor

qUIRINGH vAN BREKELENKAM
Old Woman Eating, F50
Adopted by Lesley O’Meara
Conservator: Thomas Proctor

ongoing

GERARd HoET
Apollo and Daphne & Pan and Syrinx, DPG176, 
DPG179
Adopted in memory of Gerard Talbot and Nina 
White
Conservator: Sophia Plender

NICoLAS PoUSSIN
The Nurture of Bacchus, DPG477
Adopted by David Pike
Conservator: Nicole Ryder; Thomas Proctor

ATTRIBUTEd To CARL wILHELM dE 
HAMILToN
Hawk & Sparrows, DPG329
Adopted by The Travellers Club
Conservator: Nicole Ryder; Thomas Proctor

woRKSHoP of TITIAN
Venus & Adonis, F209
Adopted by Dennis and Lesley Robins
Conservator: Thomas Proctor
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immunity From seiZure rePort 2014/15

in april 2009, the seCretary oF 
state For Culture, Media and 
sport granted Dulwich Picture Gallery 
approved status under Part 6 of the 
Tribunals Courts and enforcement Act 
2007 allowing us – where necessary – to 
apply for protection for specific loans to 
exhibitions under the provisions of the Act.

Dulwich Picture Gallery has continued to 
apply the necessary processes developed 
following our approved status and in 
accordance with our Due Diligence Policy. This 
involves compiling obtainable provenance 
information for each loan, researching and 
requesting further information, running 
checks via art loss databases, carefully 
considering any remaining gaps in provenance 
and evaluating risk of third party claim.   

Details of the works requiring immunity from 
seizure together with results of the relevant 
provenance research are published on 
Dulwich Picture Gallery’s website at least four 
weeks before the objects arrive in the UK. 

Over the 2014-15 period two exhibitions were 
shown at Dulwich Picture Gallery containing 
works for which immunity from seizure was 
granted, covering a total of 61 works.  During 
this period no enquiries or claims were 
received under Section 7 of the Protection of 
Cultural Objects on Loan (Publications and 
Provision of Information) Regulations 2008. 

exhibitions inCluding  
proteCted works: 

HoCKNEy, PRINTMAKER
5 February 2014 - 11 May 2014 
13 works on paper  
 
ART ANd LIfE: BEN NICHoLSoN, wINIfREd 
NICHoLSoN, CHRISToPHER wood, ALfREd 
wALLIS, wILLIAM STAITE MURRAy,  
1920 – 1931
4 June - 21 September 2014 
No protected works on loan  

foUR MASTERPIECES By JAN vAN HUySUM
1 July – 28 September 2014
No protected works on loan  
 
fRoM THE foREST To THE SEA: EMILy CARR 
IN BRITISH CoLUMBIA
1 November 2014 - *8 March 2015  
(*Original closing date extended by one week  
to 15 March)
43 works on paper
3 works on canvas 
1 work on board 
1 photographic print 

RAvILIoUS
1 April - 31 August 2015
No protected works on loan  

The 29th May 1961 Charity
The Geoffrey and Julian Agnew Charitable 
Trust
Aimia
Alleyn’s School
The American Friends of Dulwich Picture 
Gallery
The Art Fund
Arts Council England
Richard Aylmer
The Estate of the late Mrs Stella Benwell
Nicholas Berwin
The P H G Cadbury Charitable Trust
The Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture 
Gallery
The Estate of the late Mrs Deborah Cullen
D’Oyly Carte Charitable Trust
Dulwich College
Gillian Eeley
The Elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust
Mark and Sarah Evans 
Timothy Franey Charitable Foundation
Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery
The Golden Bottle Charitable Trust
Goldsmiths’ Company Charities
The Estate of the late Mr Jeremy Gotch
Heritage Lottery Fund
High Commission of Canada

The Estate of the late Miss Grace Patricia Hills
James Allen’s Girls’ School
Mrs Sarah Kowitz
Linbury Trust
The M&G Group
The Mactaggart Third Fund
Masterpiece International
Mr James Mayor
The Mercers Company
Michael O’Mara Books Limited
National Association of Decorative and Fine 
Arts Societies
The Hamish Parker Charitable Trust
Ian and Anne Park
Philip Wilson Publishers
David Pike
RBC Wealth Management
Richard Rogers Charitable Settlement
Mr John Sharman
The Bernard Sunley Charitable Foundation
Travellers Club
Penny Treadwell
Eugenie Turton CB
George and Patti White
Wingate Foundation
The Estate of the late Mr George Young
The Zolfo Cooper Foundation
And those who wish to remain anonymous

Via the aMeriCan Friends  
oF dulwiCh piCture gallery: 
Arthur and Holly Magill Foundation 
Robert Ronus 

Via the Canadian Friends  
oF dulwiCh piCture gallery:
Michael Audain and Yoshiko Karasawa 
Paul and Kaye Beeston 
Rupert Duchesne and Holly Coll Black 
Martha Durdin and Tony Caldwell 
John and Lucinda Flemer 
Ron and Gillian Graham 
Carol Gray 
Rod and Lois Green 
David and Patsy Heffel 
Jamie C Irving 
Rosamond Ivey 
Joan F Ivory 
Gregory Kane and Adrian Burns 
Michael and Sonja Koerner 
Ann McCaig 
McLean Foundation 
Christopher Philps 
Power Corporation of Canada 
A K Prakash Foundation 
Fred and Beverly Schaeffer 
JR Shaw 
Robert Saunders 
Gerald Sheff and Shanitha Kachan 
Dasha Shenkman 
David Silcox and Linda Intaschi 
Daniel F Sullivan 
Paul Zed and Wende Cartwright 

our Donors 

donors and supporters who gaVe £1,000 and aboVe during the year april 2014 – MarCh 2015
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desenFans CirCle gold
Nicholas and Debbie Barton
Simon and Meg Freakley
Johnny and Sarah Van Haeften

desenFans CirCle silVer
Dr Kevin and Jackie Mountain
Dame Theresa Sackler DBE
Mary Weston CBE

desenFans CirCle bronze
Mr Felix Appelbe
Anne Heseltine
Dr Philip Kay and Alexandra Jackson Kay
James and Urszula King
Jamie and Julia Korner
Herbert and Sybil Kretzmer
Sara Luder and Charles Newman
Rosaleen Mulji
Richard and Amicia Oldfield
Ian and Anne Park
Sir David and Lady Richards
Tim and Jenny Ringo
Robert Ronus
Dr Joseph Spence
George and Patti White

desenFans CirCle
Julian Agnew
Mark and Janie Andrews
Noël and Caroline Annesley
Paul and Janet Barry
Tom and Ingrid Beazley
Michael and Maria Binnion
Mark and Mary Corby
Charles and Ginny Covell
Michael and Angela Cronk
Dónall Curtin and Anne O’Donoghue
Ludovic and Camilla de Walden
Mr and Mrs R. J. Elliott
Mark and Sarah Evans
Lady Getty
Charlotte and Charles Harman
Lord and Lady Kakkar
James and Clare Kirkman
Dr David Landau and Marie-Rose Kahane

James and Béatrice Lupton
Patrick Mears and Rachel Anderson
Nicholas and Lindsay Merriman
Christopher and Sophie North
Michael and Ivetta Rabinovich
His Honour Michael Rich QC
Philip and Sarah Richards
Yvonne Riley
Patrick and Sue Sumner
Denis and Susie Tinsley
Penny Treadwell

honorary desenFans CirCle 
MeMbers
Peter and Sally Cadbury
Arturo and Holly Melosi
Hamish Parker
David Pike
Lesley and Dennis Robins
Lord and Lady Sainsbury of Preston Candover
The Hon Laura Weinstock

the 1811 Club
Jill and Sandy Alexander
Leslie and Desna Allan
Professor Alan and Sarah Bird
Lady Black
Ian and Fumiyo Boulton
Francis Carnwath CBE and Caroline Wiseman
Raymond and Ruth Cousins
Pat A Cox
Andrew Cullen
Dr Tyrrell and Siân Evans
John and Felicity Fairbairn
Marshall Field CBE
Nigel Fletcher and Caroline Burton
Brian and Penny Foord
Derek and Margaret Fordham
Peter and Rita Frost
Surojit and Dr Susan Ghosh
Marion Gibbs CBE
Oliver and Sue Gillie
Bruce and Ursula Gregory
Meg and Jim Hammer
Lady Hancock
Caroline Hansberry

Patrons of Dulwich 
Picture gallery

Helen Grace Hardy and Marion Cayless
Mary Haynes
Bill and Janet Higman
Jean Howell
Hugh Hudson-Davies
James Hughes-Hallett CMG
Christopher and Charlotte King
Martin and Wendy Kramer
Dr John Lazar and Susan Rosenberg Lazar
Lord and Lady Lester of Herne Hill
Mark and Liza Loveday
Judy Marshall
Nigel and Anna McNair Scott
David and Margaret Morris-Marsham
Sheila O’Reilly and Peter McKay
Terence O’Sullivan and Dr Adrianne Reveley
Nicholas and Dr Cecilia Powell
Jeremy and Jackie Prescott
Richard and Candida Raeburn
Charles and Celia Randell
Ian Rankine
Betty Ratzin
Andrew and Ann Rutherford
William and Ruth Saunders
Chris and Nina Smith
Mark and Sue Smith
Patrick and Merrill Spencer
Katharine St. John-Brooks and Vivian 
Bazalgette
David and Desrae Trace
Eugenie Turton CB
Ellen-Grethe Vines
Gay Walker
Willis Walker*
Graham and Margaret Walsh
John and Judith Ward
David Wells
Thomas and Brenda Wells
Simon White and Dr Frances Woisin
Chris and Diana Wilkinson
Martin Wyld CBE
* Donor has sadly passed away

honorary 1811 Club MeMbers
Phillip E Cox
Peter and Win Ellis
Robert and Diana Gore
Ann Thornton
John and Anne Vadgama

the board oF the Friends  
oF dulwiCh piCture gallery
Peter Frost  Chairman
Pat Cox   Vice-Chairman
Colin Smith  Treasurer
Jenny Ringo  Membership
Rona Black
Liz Buchanan
Lee Coppack
Rita Frost
Lata McWatt
Judy Mewburn
Gail Mitchell
Pia Helena Ormerod
Steve Viney

the board oF the aMeriCan Friends 
oF dulwiCh piCture gallery
Jeremy M Kroll President 
Ned Mobley 
Ian A C Dejardin Vice-President 
Holly Melosi Until January 2015
Nancy Casserley Until January 2015
Gregory R Miller Until January 2015
Bahman Irvani Until January 2015
Sophie North Until January 2015
Philip McHugh  
Monique Quesada Until January 2015  
 
The American Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery 
is a non-profit organisation exempt from federal 
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) [EIN: 98-
0391841]

the board oF the Canadian Friends 
oF dulwiCh piCture gallery
David Silcox C.M. Chair 
Gregory Kane Q.C
Ian A C Dejardin Ex-officio 
Michael Koerner C.M.
Phillip Crawley  
Ash K Prakash
Rupert Duchesne  
Ashley Prime
Martha Durdin  
Robert Reymond
Mark Fell  

The Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery is 
a designated Charitable Organisation issued under 
the Canadian Corporations Act (Charity Number: 
81828 9860 RR0001)

the CaMpaign Cabinet
Simon Freakley Chair 
Dame Theresa Sackler DBE 
Ian A C Dejardin Ex-officio 
David Silcox C.M. 
Mary Corby  
Jenny Sweeney Until June 2014
Jeremy M Kroll  
Johnny Van Haeften 
Philip Richards  
Bob Wigley 
Victoria Robey   

eduCation adVisory board
Robert M Gore Chair
Dalya Alberge 
Christina Gascoigne 
Béatrice Lupton 
Lady Win Normington 
Humphrey Ocean RA 
Yvonne Riley 
The Hon Nicholas Wallop 
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our lenDers 

The Designation scheme identifies the  
pre-eminent collections of national and 
international importance held in England’s  
non-national museums, libraries and archives, 
based on their quality and significance.

HoCKNEy, PRINTMAKER, 5 fEBRUARy 2014 - 
11 MAy 2014

GueST CuRATOR
Richard Lloyd, International Head of Print 
Department, Christie’s 

CATALOGue COnTRIBuTORS: 
Written and edited by Richard Lloyd with 
contributions from Celia Birtwell, Sidney Felsen, 
Martin Gayford, Craig Hartley, John Kasmin, 
Marco Livingstone, Ed Ruscha, Peter Tatchell and 
Ken Tyler

LenDeRS: 
The Fine Art Society
J. Kasmin
Stephen Stuart-Smith, Enitharmon Editions Ltd.
Marco Livingstone
National Gallery of Art, Washington
National Gallery of Australia, Canberra
Salts Mill, Saltaire
The David Hockney Foundation
Peter and Emma Jackson
Antony Barton Private Collection
Private Collections, courtesy Sims Reed 
Private Collection, courtesy Alan Cristea Gallery
Tate
Bradford Museums and Galleries
Rumi Verjee
Jon Aisbitt
Maurice Payne
Marlene Dalton
The Johanna and Leslie Garfield Collection

John Lownsbrough
And those who wish to remain anonymous

SuPPORTeRS: 
The Elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust
Zolfo Cooper
Sims Reed Gallery
Farrow & Ball 
The Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

TOuR VenueS:
The exhibition was organised by Dulwich Picture 
Gallery, touring to The Bowes Museum, County 
Durham. 

ART ANd LIfE: BEN NICHoLSoN, wINIfREd 
NICHoLSoN, CHRISToPHER wood, ALfREd 
wALLIS, wILLIAM STAITE MURRAy, 1920 – 
1931, 4 JUNE - 21 SEPTEMBER 2014 

GueST CuRATOR: 
Jovan Nicholson, independent art historian

CATALOGue COnTRIBuTORS: 
Written and edited by Jovan Nicolson with 
contributions from Sebastiano Barassi, Curator 
of Collections and Exhibitions, The Henry Moore 
Foundation and Dr Julian Stair, potter and writer 

LenDeRS: 
The Royal Pavilion and Museums, Brighton & Hove
Government Art Collection 
Leamington Spa Art Gallery & Museum 
(Warwick District Council)
Leeds Museums and Galleries (Leeds Art Gallery)
Scottish National Gallery of Modern Art, 
Edinburgh 
Tate
Private Family Collection 
The Dartington Hall Trust 

The Ingram Collection of Modern British and 
Contemporary Art
The Pier Arts Centre, Orkney 
Kettle’s Yard, University of Cambridge
York Museums Trust (York Museum) 
Fine Art Society 
Crafts Study Centre, University for the 
Creative Arts
Private Family Collection 
Private Collection courtesy Middlesbrough 
Institute of Modern Art 
Private Collection courtesy Crane Kalman 
Gallery
Private Collection courtesy Jonathan Clark 
Fine Art
And those who wish to remain anonymous

SuPPORTeRS: 
Supported using public funding by the 
National Lottery through Arts Council 
England
The Elizabeth Cayzer Charitable Trust
Modern British Supporters’ Circle 
Philip Wilson Publishers 
Farrow & Ball 
The Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

ART & LIFe TOuR PARTneRS:  
This exhibition was a collaboration between 
Dulwich Picture Gallery, Kettle’s Yard, 
University of Cambridge, and Leeds Art 
Gallery. 

foUR MASTERPIECES By JAN vAN 
HUySUM, 1 JULy – 28 SEPTEMBER 2014: 
Curator: 
Henrietta Ward, Curatorial Fellow, Dulwich 
Picture Gallery 

LenDeRS: 
Private Collection 
Private Collection 

fRoM THE foREST To THE SEA: EMILy 
CARR IN BRITISH CoLUMBIA, 1 NovEMBER 
2014 - 15 MARCH 2015

CO-CuRATORS: 
Sarah Milroy, writer and curator
Ian A C Dejardin, The Sackler Director, 
Dulwich Picture Gallery

CATALOGue: 
Written and edited by Sarah Milroy and Ian A 
C Dejardin with contributions from:
Corrine Hunt
James Hart (Haida hereditary chief)
Jessica Stockholder 
Robert Storrie 
Gerta Moray 
Charles Hill 

Marianne Nicholson 
Ian Thom 
Peter Doig 
Karen Duffek 
Dr Kathryn Bridge 

LenDeRS: 
Art Gallery of Alberta Collection
Art Gallery of Hamilton
Art Gallery of Ontario, Toronto
British Columbia Archives
Glenbow Museum, Calgary 
Hart House Art Collection, University of 
Toronto
Horniman Museum and Gardens 
McMichael Canadian Art Collection
The Montreal Museum of Fine Arts
Murderme Collection 
Museum of Anthropology, University of 
British Columbia
Musée d’art contemporain de Montreal
National Gallery of Canada, Ottawa
Pitt Rivers Museum, University of Oxford 
The Power Corporation of Canada Art 
Collection
Hank Swartout, Canada
The Art Gallery of Greater Victoria
The British Museum, London 

The Robert McLaughlin Gallery
University of Alberta Art Collection, 
University of Alberta Museums
Collection of the University of Victoria Legacy 
Art Galleries
Vancouver Art Gallery 
Morris and Helen Belkin Art Gallery, 
University of British Columbia

SuPPORTeRS: 
RBC Wealth Management (Principle Sponsor) 
Aimia (Presenting Sponsor) 
The Canadian Friends of Dulwich Picture 
Gallery (Presenting Sponsor)
Michael and Sonia Koerner 
The Audain Foundation 
Power Corporation of Canada
Heffel 
Richard M. Ivey 
Gretchen and Donald Ross 
Elizabeth Tory 
The Globe and Mail (Media Partner) 
Farrow & Ball
AK Prakash Foundation (Publication 
Supporter) 
Gerald Sheff and Shanitha Kachan 
(Publication Supporter)
The Friends of Dulwich Picture Gallery

TOuR PARTneRS: 
The exhibition has been organised by 
Dulwich Picture Gallery and the Art Gallery 
of Ontario with the generous collaboration 
of the National Gallery of Canada, the 
Vancouver Art Gallery and Royal BC Museum, 
BC Archives.
 

dulwiCh piCture gallery’s teMporary exhibitions prograMMe 
is made possible by the provision of insurance through the Government Indemnity 
Scheme. We would like to thank HM Government for providing Government Indemnity 
and the Department for Culture, Media and Sport and Arts Council england for 
arranging the Indemnity. 
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Dulwich Picture gallery staFF 

staFF in post during the year:

The Sackler Director Ian A C Dejardin
Arturo and Holly Melosi Chief Curator Xavier Bray
Development Manager, Trusts and Foundations Alex Adie
Development Officer Kim Balukiewicz
Senior Education Department Manager Miranda Baxter 
Press Officer Louisa Bee
Development Officer, Membership and Patrons Kathleen Bice (to December 2014)
Director of Development Chantelle Culshaw (from June 2014)
Development Officer, Membership and Patrons    Annette Corbett (from December 2014)
Cover Sackler Studio Technician Oliver Campbell
Sackler Studio Technician (part time) Francesca Centioni (to June 2014)
Community Engagement Coordinator (part time) Emily Christou (to July 2014)
HR and Payroll Officer (part time) Roz Clapham (to June 2014)
Schools Programme Manager Louise Conaghan 
Curatorial Collections Manager Grace Hailstone (from July 2014)
Exhibitions Officer Sarah Creed (to March 2015)
Exhibitions Officer Rebecca England
Ticketing Officer                                                           Lizbeth Frampton
Marketing Officer Alexandra Hayman (from November 2014)
Gallery Events Manager Liz Herring (to December 2014)
Retail Assistant Jean Hill
Reception Tara Idnani 
Retail Support Assistant (part time) Sarah Lacey (from June 2014)
Digital Communications Officer (part time)           Stuart Leech
Assistant Curator Sorcha Ni Lideadha
Exhibitions Officer Nadine Loach
Head of Retail Sonia Kiourtzidis
Deputy Director Andrew Macdonald
Front of House Manager Kathryn McCandless 
Educational Public Programmes Manager Lettie McKie (to October 2014); 
Head of Communications                                            Ellie Manwell
Executive Assistant and Planning Manager Harvey Marcus 
Curatorial Collections Manager Katherine Moulds (to August 2014)
Head of Operations James Murly-Gotto
Operations Officer Ian Noble
Sackler Centre Technician  Tom Sheriff   
Head of Exhibitions Clare Simpson
Deputy Front of House Manager Claire Smith
Senior Finance Officer John Smith 
Finance Officer Louise Smith

Marketing Officer Andrea Szeplaki 
Site Manager Charlie Thomas (from January 2015)
Development Manager, Campaign James Thompson 
Curatorial Fellow Hettie Ward
Head of Finance Maria Walsh (to March 2015)
Public Programmes Manager Mary Warbelow (from September 2014)
Site Manager Oliver Webster (to December 2014)
Community Engagement Manager Michelle Weiner
Director of Learning and Public Affairs Gillian Wolfe CBE (to Feb 2015) 
Communications Officer                             Lucy Wood (to November 2014) 

Gallery Assistants:
Meriel Abraham, Javier Aldama, Luke Alder, Wladimir Alteriac-Witkowsky,  Simon Balcon, Molly Behagg, 
Katherine Brennan, Lewis Brennan, Paddy Butler, Gareth Cadwallader, Gigi Capone, Cailean Couldridge,  
Oli Campbell, Sandy Dwelly, George Eynaud, Rebecca Farmar, Matteo Fuzzi, Jessica Geary, Manuel Godhino, 
Fraser Hollingworth, Rose Homfray, Alex Horsley, Eriko Horsley, Betty Jaresova, Hugh John, Poppy Jones-Pierpoint, 
Andrew Kerr, Olivia Mansfield, Noreen Mcguire, Dana Mokkadem, Gemma Nelson, Nicole Rogers, Chris Riggio, 
Colleen Selwyn, Heidi Sincuba, Simon Spier, Olivia Urquhart, Jai Watson, Ruth Vaughan
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Dulwich Picture gallery staFF (cont.)

the saCkler Centre For arts eduCation 
The Gallery’s Education Department runs a programme of courses and activities in the Sackler 
Centre for Arts Education at the Gallery, and at other sites throughout south London.  As well as the 
permanent staff listed above, the following artists, specialists, project co-ordinators, assistants and 
volunteers worked with the Education Department during 2014/15:

projeCt Coordinators
Mary Brodrick
Rosie Cooper
Meghan Goodeve
Christine Harwood 
Nicki Hatton
Shauna Aide O’Brian 
Effie Phillips
Jodie Sadler

teaChers, guides, Models and Volunteers      
Eugene Ankomah Julie Green Effie Phillips 
Jackie Barker Gill Hancock Elsie Phipps 
Hazel Barrett  Katie Hardwicke Mary Poole-Wilson
Ingrid Beazley Nicki Hatton  Betty Ratzin
Mariska Beekenkamp Eva Helena Monson Catherine Rawlinson
Hannah Belcher Victoria Henderson-Cleland Sheila Reynolds 
Ali Benton Diana Heppenstall Annie Ricketts
Dhruv Bhatnagar Wendy Hildreth Steph Robertson
Anna Bonavia Katya Hills Hilary Rosser
Beatrice Braude Linda Horsfield Maddalena Sampson 
Patricia Camerlynck Yumiko Inagaki Thomas Sheriff
Gulnar Cepoglu Kym Jacobson Elizabeth Shuck
Desmond Churcher Iris Jenkins Zoe Simon
Sarah Ciacci Manuela Kerr-Smiley Jane Simpkiss 
Ursula Collingwood Susan King Mike Sterling 
Anne Collins Rosemary Lacovara  Jack Stimpson
Stephanie Conway  Fiona Lawson Millie Stoney
Alice Cook David Lipscomb Kathryn Suarez
Susan Cookson Rachel Lloyd Stef Teichman
Carol Cooper Shirley Lumsden Victoria Tokarski
Carol Craig Jane Macdonald Penny Treadwell
Diana Crewes Paul Maina  Virginia Tuck
Lucy Davies Natalia Majeska Helen Turner 
Rosemary Dawson Judy Mewburn Caroline Van Den Bergh 
Liz Day Marinella Mezzanotte Oonagh Van Der Borgh
Pat Drew Richard Moon Nicky Villeneau
Antonia Edgerton Jojo Mullen Antony Ward

Mireille Ellington Martina Nalesso Val Watkins
Sally Elliot  Monica Nappo Lizzie Watson 
Carolina Fernandez  Erik Nevin Jacqueline Whitaker
Lise Fowle  John O’Donnell Olivia Willers
Diana Fyfe Chrystyan Okuwa Eileen Wilson
Hilary Gaster Rebecca Olajide David Windle
Charlotte George Philippa Owen Susan Wood, Dr.
Lady Gill Hancock Carla Pellegrinelli Freda Woodcock
Kirsty Gould  

artists and subjeCt speCialists - all prograMMe strands 
Rebecca Allen 
Zoe Flynn 
Caroline Nunan
Deborah Andrews 
Stewart Ganley 
Rebecca Palmer
Olivia Armstrong 
Debbie Guneratne 
Erica Parrett
Peter Astwood 
Gabor Gyory 
William Riding
Bridget Bailey 
Sal Idriss  
Bisakha Sarker
Mik Brown 
Luke Jones 
Ben Senior
Peter Brown 
Tanya Kaprielian 
Ben Street
Victoria Browne 
Kate Langrish-Smith 

Lois Strover
Liz Butler 
Sara Lee 
Joanna van der Meer
Hannah Carding 
Jo Lewis 
Joanna Veevers
Bo Chapman 
Linda Litchfield 
Karen Vost
Liz Charsley-Jory 
Juliette Losq  
Binita Walia
Paul Cree 
Andy MacKay 
Carole Waller
Sally Cutler 
Valerie McBride 
Sarah Wetherall 
Pat Drew  
Catherine McCormick 
Susan Wilson
Nicola Dunn 

Felicity Montaigu 
Dr Kenneth Wolfe
Ruth Dupre 
Cheryl Moskowitz 
Adrian Wood 
Katherine Elizabeth 
George Moustakas  
Valerie Woodgate
Carlotta Finch 
 
 

The Gallery is also grateful to  
St Barnabas Parish Hall for 
providing a venue where visiting 
schools have lunch and to Bartleys 
Flowers for their generous 
sponsorship over the past year.
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reFerence anD aDministratiVe Details

patron
The Rt Hon the Lord Sainsbury of Preston Candover KG

ChairMan
Simon Freakley

direCtor (the saCkler direCtor)
Ian AC Dejardin

board oF trustees
Simon Freakley Chair
Eugenie Turton CB Deputy Chair
Mark Andrews 
Sarah Crompton 
Colleen Harris MVO, MICG 
Nichola Johnson
Jussi Pylkkanen  (From July 2015) 
Radhika Radhakrishnan 
Gary Savage (From September 2014)
Joseph Spence (Until September 2014)
Stefan Turnbull  (From July 2015)
Johnny Van Haeften 
Martin Wyld CBE Non-executive member

FinanCe and audit CoMMittee
Radhika Radhakrishnan      Chair
Ian A C Dejardin           Ex-officio
Simon Freakley 
Maria Walsh                  Ex-officio (until March 2015)
Crispin Southgate                Co-opted 
Andrew Macdonald     Ex-officio

dulwiCh piCture gallery enterprises liMited:  
board oF direCtors
Eugenie Turton CB     Chair (until June 2014)
Ian A C Dejardin           Ex-officio
Mark Andrews            Chair (from May 2014)
James Close OBE 
Andrew Macdonald    Company Secretary (from May 2014)
Kerry Foster                (Until February 2015)
Judith West 

proFessional serViCes and adVisors
Painting conservators  Sophia Plender, Nicole Ryder

Frame conservator Thomas Proctor

Auditors and Tax Advisors BDO LLP, Yare House, 62-64 Thorpe Rd, 
  Norwich, Norfolk NR1 1RY

Actuary Barnett Waddingham LLP, Cheapside House, 
  138 Cheapside, London EC2V 6BW

Solicitors Michelmores, Woodwater House, Pynes Hill,
  Exeter EX2 5WR

Investment Managers  Rathbone Brothers Investment Managers PLC,  
1 Curzon Place, London W1J 5FB

Bankers Barclays Bank PLC, 223/229 Rye Lane
  London SE15 4TY

ContaCt details

Dulwich Picture Gallery
Gallery Road, London SE21 7AD
Telephone: 020 8299 8700; 
Email: enquiries@dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk
 
dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk
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Gallery Road, dulwich village
London SE21 7Ad

Telephone 020 8693 5254 
Textphone 020 8693 4786
Fax 020 8299 8700

dulwichpicturegallery.org.uk


